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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF KANISHK ALUMINIUM INDIA LIMITED.

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of KANISHK ALUMINIUM INDIA LIMITED
(“the Company™), which comprise the Balance sheet as at 31 March 2025, and the
Statement of Profit and Loss and theStaternent of Cash Flows for the year ended, and notes to
the Financial Statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner
so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31t March, 2025 its
profit/loss and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013(*“the Act”). Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(“ICAI”) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.




" Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to
be communicated in our report. _

As the Company is not a listed entity, this requirement of reporting Key Audit Matters is not
applicable to our audit. ' :

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon

The Company’s board of directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Board’s Report including
Annexures to Board’s Report but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our
audit or otherwise appears to be materially ‘misstated. _

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Act with respect to the preparation of these Financial Statements that give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs (financial position), Profit/Loss (financial performance) and cash
flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the Accounting Standards (AS) specified under section 133 of the Act. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
igions of the Act for safeguarding' of the assets of the Company and for preventing
g frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate



" accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going 'éoncern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to
do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Standalone Financial
Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

a) Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control. ' :




b) Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i)
of the Act , we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

¢) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

d) Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e) Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Standalone
Financial Statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Standalone
Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner
that achieves fair preséntati'on.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Standalone Financial Statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We conside quantitative
materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in
evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the Standalone Financial Statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit,

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,




Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

d)

2

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by
the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013, we give in the “Annexure A”, a Statement on the matters specified
in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Statement of Cash Flow
dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with relevant rules issued thereunder.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Company as
on March 31, 2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on 31st March, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164 (2) of the Act. | -

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure B”.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report under section
197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In in our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the current year is in accordance
with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to any director is not
in excess of the limit laid down under Section 197 of the Act.




h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position in its Standalone Financial Statements.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses

iii. There are no amounts, which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education

and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv.

a) The management has represented that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief, no
funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any
other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries™), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”)
or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

b) The management has represented, that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief, no
funds have been received by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

Based on such audit procedures performed, nothing has come to our notice that has
caused us to believe that the representations made by the management contain any
material misstatement.

v.  The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year.

vi. The company has used accounting software for maintaining books of account for the
financial year ended 31/03/2025, as per the certificate of the expert provided by the
nagement, the software has a feature of recording an audit trail (edit log)facility
¢ has operated throughout the yeér for all relevant transactions recorded in the
and there is no instances of the audit trail feature being tempered with.




Further, in accordance with the proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014, which is applicable from 1st April 2023, reporting under Rule 11(g) of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 on preservation of audit trail, we
note that the Company has preserved the audit trail in compliance with statutory
record retention requirements.

For MAHAVEER GANDHI & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants '

Mahaveer Gandhi

Partner

M. No. 074020

UDIN: 25074020BMICMG7358
Place: Jodhpur

Date : September 03, 2025



ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT. AUDITOR’S REPORT

Referred to in Para 1 ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in our
Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of the Company on the Standalone Financial
Statements for the year ended on March 31, 2025.

We report that:
i

a) (A) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment;
(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of
intangible assets.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Property, Plant and Equipment have
been physically verified by the management at reasonable intervals; no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification;

¢) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds of all the immovable
properties (other than properties where the company is the lessee and the lease
agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) disclosed in the financial
statements are held in the name of the company

d) According to the information and ‘explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the company has not revalued its
Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets
during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under Clause 3(i)(d) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings have been
initiated or are pending against the company for holding any Benami Property under
the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made
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1ii.

1v.

Vi.

a) As explained to us & on the basis of the records examined by us, in our opinion,
physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals by the
management. In our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such verification by the
management is appropriate. No discrepancy of 10% or more in the aggregate for each
class of inventory was noticed on physical verification of stocks by the management
as compared to book records.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the company has been sanctioned
working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks or
financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets during any point of time
of the year. The quarterly returns or statements filed by the company with such banks
or financial institutions are in agreement with the books of account of the Company.

According to the information and ekplanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the company, the company has not made investments in,
nor provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of
loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any
other parties during the year. Accordingly, provisions of clause 3(iii)(a), 3(iii)(b),
3(iii)(c), 3(iii)(d), 3(iii)(e) and 3(iii)(f) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records, in respect of loans, investments, guarantees, and security,
provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 have been complied with,

~e

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the company
has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits covered under
sections 73 to 76 of the Corhpani’es Act, 2013. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is
not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, maintenance
of cost records are required by the Central Government under sub-section (1) of section
148 of the Companies Act and same has been maintained as required.




Viii.

iX.

vii.

a)

b)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the. company, the company is generally regular in
depositing undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services Tax, Provident
Fund, Employees' State Insurance, Income-Tax, Sales-Tax, Service Tax, Duty of
Customs, Duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and any other statutory dues to the
appropriate authorities. According to the information and explanation given to us there
were no outstanding statutory dues as at March 31, on 31st of March, 2025 for a
period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

According to the information and "explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the company, there is no statutory dues referred to in
sub-clause (a) that have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the company, the Company has not surrendered or
disclosed any transactions, previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in
the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

a)

b)

d)

€)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the company, the company has not defaulted in
repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any
lender

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the company, the company has not been declared a
willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender

According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the
Company has utilized the money obtained by way of term loans during the year for
the purposes for which they were obtained

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall
examination of the balance sheet of the Company, we report that no funds raised on
short term basis have been used for'long term purposes by the company.

The Company does not hold any investment in any subsidiary, associate or joint
(as defined under the Act) during the year ended March 31, 2024.
ly, clause 3(ix)(e) is not applicable.



Xl1.

Xii.

xiii.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the
management, the company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of
securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies. Accordingly,
clause 3(ix)(f) is not applicable.

a) The company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public

offer (including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the
Order is not applicable. i Y :

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our

examination of the records of the Company, the company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully,
partially or optionally convertible) during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(x)(b) of the
Order is not applicable. ‘

Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the
information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the company or any fraud on the
company has been noticed or reported during the course of audit.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-

section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed by the auditors in
Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014 with the Central Government;

According to the information and explanations - given to us by the management, no
whistle-blower complaints had been received by the company

The company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, clause 3(xii)(a), 3(xii)(b) and
3(xii)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all
transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of
Companies Act, where applicable and the .details have been disclosed in the financial

statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards;



X1v.
a) In our opinion and based on our examination, the company does not require to have an
internal audit system. Accordingly, clause 3(xiv)(a), of the Order is not applicable

b) Based on information and explanations ﬁrovided to us, no internal audit had been
conducted of the company. Accordingly, clause 3(xiv)(a), of the Order is not applicable

Xv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company
has not entered into any non-cash transactions with' directors or persons connected with
him and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable
to the Company

XVI. ,
a) In our Opinion and based on our examination, the Company is not required to be
registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934).
Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

b) In our Opinion and based on our examination, the Company has not conducted any Non-
Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities without a valid Certificate of
Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable. ,

¢) In our Opinion and based on our examination, the Company is not a Core Investment
Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India.
Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

d) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Group does
not have any CIC as part of the Group.

xvii.  Based on our examination, the company has not incurred cash losses in the financial year
and in the immediately preceding financial year.

xviii.  There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly,
clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

XiX.  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the
financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment
of financial liabilities, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans

d based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has
cﬁ&%ﬂt}{/ﬁs (%\\our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as
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XXi.

XXil.

on the date of the audit report that company is not capable of meeting its liabilities
existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year
from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the
future viability of the company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts
up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that
all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get
discharged by the company as and when they fall due.

Based on our examination, the provision of section 135 are not applicable on the
company. Accordingly, clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable.

The company is not required to prepare Consolidate financial statement hence this clause
is not applicable.

The company has used accounting software for maintaining books of account for the
financial year ended 31/03/2025, as per the certificate of the expert provided by the
management, has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and same has
operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software and
there is no instances of the audit trail feature being tempered.

Further, in accordance with the proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014, which is applicable from 1st April 2023, reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 on preservation of audit trail, we note that the Company
has preserved the audit trail in compliance with statutory record retention requirements.

For MAHAVEER GANDHI & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants :

Mahaveer Gandhi

Partner

M. No. 074020

UDIN: 25074020BMICMG 7358
Place: Jodhpur

Date: September 03, 2025



ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Referred to in Para 2(f) ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory requirements’ in our
Independent Auditor’s report to the members of the Company on the Standalone Financial
Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial statements
under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act,2013 (“the
Act)

We have audited the internal financial.controls with reference to standalone Financial
Statements of Kanishk Aluminium India Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2025
in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the
year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls v

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™)
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls
that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and
the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an
audjtof+ al financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls

2o Hiigs\ d by the ICAL Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
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comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.

Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
Judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Financial
Statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over
financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that: ‘

1. pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

2. provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded . as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and

3. Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect
on the financial statements.




* Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate Internal Financial Controls System
over financial reporting and such Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2025 , based on “the Internal Control Over Financial
Reporting criteria established by the Company” considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the “Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting™ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For MAHAVEER GANDHI & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

Mahaveer Gandhi

Partner

M. No. 074020

UDIN: 25074020BMICMG7358
Place: Jodhpur

Date: September 03, 2025
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Kanishk Aluminium India Limited

(Formerly known as: Kanishk Aluminium India Private Limited)
Plot No E-849 A, Fourth Phase Ricco Boranada,

Jodhpur, Rajasthan, India, 342001

CIN: U27109RJ2018PLC063198

Annexure I- Standalone Statement of Assets and Liabilities
(All amounts in Indian Rupees in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Note no. AR at AS at
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
I. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1) Shareholders' funds
a) Share capital : * 2 944.00 590.00
b) Reserves and surplus ' : ' 3 713.52 782.85
2) Non - current liabilities
a) Long term borrowings ; 4 770.46 631.56
b) Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 5 111.75 84.90
c) Long term provisions - ) 6 10.44 8.07
3) Current liabilities
a) Short term borrowings 74 1,503.49 1,452.89
b) Trade payables 8
- Dues to micro enterprises and small enterprises 824.30 537.28
- Due to creditors other than micro and small enterprises 2.35 1.86
©j Othier current liabilities 9 50.80 28.25
d) Short-term provisions 10 98.05 -
TOTAL 5,029.17 4,117.66
I1. ASSETS '
1) Non-current assets ' ‘
a) Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible assets
i) Tangible Assets . 1,280.70 1,533.94
ii) Intangible assets ‘ : . : 7.74 7.30
ii) CWIP - -
b) Other non current assets - ) 12 39.49 34.38
2) Current Assets
a) Inventories 13 2,449.48 1.660.46
a) Trade receivables 14 1,088.21 853.87
b) Cash and bank balances 15 10.96 7.71
¢) Short-term loans and advances 16 108.81 2.72
d) Other current assets 17 43,78 17.28
TOTAL 5,029.17 4,117.66
Summary of significant accounting polices 1
Notes to Financial Statement i 21050
As per our report of even dated attached a (();and on behalfqﬁ-twgp{RfRi@me}M INDIALTD.
For Mahaveer Gandhi And Associates ' . ) Kanishk Alymipium India Limited %
C hartgr'éd Accountants %Mj %&
Firm Registration Number: 010756C Parmanand Agarwal Kh

REGTOR
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Annexure II- Statement of Profit and Loss
(All amounts in Indian Rupees in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Note no Year ended Year ended
"| March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
I. Income
a) Revenue from operations 18 5,978.22 5,930.46
b) Other income 19 37.02 23.43
Total Income 6,015.24 5,953.89
I1. Expenses
a) Coust vl Material Consuined 20 3,405.15 5,295.95
b)Changes in Inventory of Finished Goods and Work-in-Progress 21 -557.33 -180.41
c) Employee benefits expenses 22 127.25 78.07
d) Finance costs 23 170.26 209.65
¢) Depreciation and amortization expenses 1 73.56 64.35
f) Other expenses ' 24 316.20 303.25
Total E_xpenses 5,595.09 5,770.84
I1L. Proﬁt/(loss) before exceptlonal and extraordinary items and
tax (I-II) : 420.15 183.04
IV. Exceptional items - -
V. Profit before extraordinary items and tax (ITI-IV) 420.15 183.04
VI. Extraordinary Items - -
VI Profit Before Tax (V-VI) 420.15 183.04
VIII Tax expenses
a) Current tax 95.53 3.00
b) Deferred tax 20.17 9.52
c¢) Earlier year tax -
IX. Profit/(loss) for the year (VII-VIII) 304.45 170.52
e
X.Restated Earnings per share.: (Face value of Rs.10/- each) -
Basic 30 323 2.15
Diluted 30 3.23 2.1
Summary of significant accounting polices ]
Notes to Financial Statement 20 50
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Annexure I11- Cash flow Statement
(All amounts in Indian Rupees in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Year ended Year ended
ARTI
B CHLARS March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
A. |Cash Flow From Operating Activities
Net Profit before tax and extraordinarv items - 420.15 183.04
Adjustments for non Cash/ Non trade items:
++ |Depreciation & Amortization Expenses 73.56 64.35
Finance Cost 170.26 209.65
Adjustments for unrealised foreign exchange Losses / (Gains) -1.96 -2.27
Loss/(Gain) On Sale Of Land 16.84 -
Sundrv Creditors Written off -
Other Cash Inflow 500.00
Operating Profits Before Change In Working Canital 678.85 954,76
Adiustments For Change In Working Canital:
(Increase) / Decrease in trade receivables -232.38 -366.57
(Increase) / Decrease in other current assets -26.50 168,99
Increase / (Decrease) in trade pavables 287.51 207.39
(Increase) / Decrease in inventories -789.02 -122.10
Increase / (Decrease) in other current liabilities 22.55 -38.06
(Increase) / Decrease in Short Term Loans & Advances -102.36 923
Increase / (Decrease) in short term provision 98.05 -
Increase / (Decrease) in Long term provision 237 -
(Increase) / Decrease in other non-current assets S 5.1
Cash generated from Operations -66.04 808.52
Income Tax Paid 95.53 3.00
Net Cash flow from Operating Activities(A) -161.56 805.52
B. |[Cash Flow From Investing Activities
Purchase of tangible assets ) -23.14 -130.65
Proceeds from sales of tangible assets : 187.54 2
Loss on sale of land -16.84
. Net Cash used in Investing Activities(B) 145.56 -130.65
C. |Cash Flow From Financing Activities
Finance Cost -170.26 -209.65
Repayment of Short term Borrowings - -
Proceeds from Short term Borrowings 3 50.61 16.31
Repayment of Long term borrowings - -576.46
Proceeds from Long term Borrowings 138.90 -
Proceeds from Issue of share capital - 100.00
Net Cash used in Financing Activities(C) 19.25 -669.79
D. |Net Increase / (Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents(A+B+C) 3.25 5.08
E. [Cash & Cash Equivalents at Beginning of period 7.71 63
r1rach & Cash Fauivalents at Fnd of period 10.96 7.71
G. ]Net Increase / (Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents(F-E) 3.24 5.08
Summary of significant accounting polices 1
Notes to Financial Statement 2to0 50
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Annexure IV- Significant Accounting Policies Forming Part of the Financial Statements
(All amounts in Indian Rupees in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Company Overview

Kanishk Aluminium India Limited ("The Company") is an unlisted limited company, incorporated under provisions of the
Companies Act' 2013, in the year 2018, with a Corporate Identity Number U27109RJ2018PLC063198. The Company engaged
in manufacturing of Aluminium Profiles and other articles through Extrusion process.

1. Significant accounting policies

a

¢

Basis of preparation of financial information
Statement of Compliance

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (Indian GAAP) under the
historical cost convention on accrual basis and on principles of going concern. The accounting policies are consistently applied
by the Company. The financial statements referred hereinafter have been prepared in accordance with the requirements and
linstructions of Schedule IIT to the Companies Act 2013, amended from time to time applicable to companies to whom AS
applies.

b Basis of preparation and presentation b

(g

¢

d

1

These financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of
the consideration given in exchange of goods and servicés. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

The financial statements are prepared to comply in all material respects with the Accounting Standards specified under section
133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and provisions of Companies Act,2013.

The Balance Sheet corresponds to the classification provisions contained in AS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements. For
clarity, various items are aggregated in the Statement of Profit and Loss and Balance Sheet. These items are disaggregated
separately in the Notes, where applicable.

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees.(INR) and all values are rounded off to nearest rupee except otherwise
stated.

Basis of measurement
£ . . . . . .
The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis as a going concern and under the historical cost convention.

The preparation of the financial statements requires estimates and -assumptions to be made that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities on the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Differences
between the actual results and estimates are recognized in the périod in which the results are known / materialize.

Accounting Conventions

Current and Non Current Classification

Assets

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

a. It is expected to be realised in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the company's normal operating cycle;

b. It is held primarily for the purpose of being traded,;

c. It is expected to be realised within 12 months after the reporting date; or

d. It is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least 12 months after
the reporting date. ;

sets include the current portion of non-current financial assets.

sets are classified as non-current For KANISHK ALUMINIUM INDIALTD
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Kanishk Aluminium India Limited
(Formerly known as: Kanishk Aluminium India Private Limited)
Plot No E-849 A, Fourth Phase Ricco Boranada,
Jodhpur, Rajasthan, India, 342001
CIN: U27109RJ2018PLC063198
Liabilities
A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:
a. It is expected to be settled in the company's normal operating cycle;
b. Tt is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;
c. It is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date;
d. The company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting
date. Terms of liability that could, at the option of the counterpany, result in it settlement by the issue of equity instruments do
not affect its classification.
Current liabilities include current portion of non-current ﬁnancnal liabilities. -
All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

¢
2 Operating cycle

Operating cycle for the business activities of the company covers the duration of the specific proiect/conuwct/’prodncl
line/service including the defect liability period, wherever applicable and extends up to the realization of receivables (including
retention monies) within the agreed credit period normally applicable to the respective lines of business. The opuatmg (,_\LIL
identified by the company is a duration of 12 months from the end of balance sheet date.

3 Revenue from operations:
(a) The company follows the mercantile system of accounting and recognize income and Expenditure are accounted ongoing
concern basis.
(b) Expenses and Income considered payable and receivable respectively are accounted for on accrual basis.
Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can
be reliably measured.
(c) All other operational revenue represents income earned from the activities incidental to the business and is recognized when
the right to receive the income is established as per the terms of the contract.

(d) Interest income is accrued at applicable mterest rate. All other income has been recognized when right to receive payment is
established.

[

¢
4 Property, Plant and Equipment, Intangible Assets, Capital: Work in Progress & Intangible assets under development

(a) Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at their original cost of acquisition or construction less accumulated
depreciation/amortization. Costs include all expenses incurred to bring the assets to its working condition for its intended use.
Subsequent improvements thereto including taxes, duties, freight and other incidental expenses related to acquisition and
installation of the assets concerned is capitalized if it increases the future economic benefits from the existing asset beyond its
previously assessed standard of performance. Interest on borrowings attributable to qualifying assets are capitalized and
included in the cost of property, plant and equipment as appropriate.

(b) Intangible assets are recognized when it is probable that the future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset will
flow to the enterprise and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably.

Intangible assets are stated at original cost net of tax/duty credits availed, if any, less accumulated amortization and cumulative
impairment. Cost of the software has not been bifurcated and shown separately wherever computer and laptop has been beught
along with the software loaded into it and under such c1rcumstances the computers and laptops has been classified as tangible
assets by the Company.

' ic) Subsequent costs are included in the assets carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the company and the cost of the ifem can be
measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are charged to the statement of profit and loss during the period in
which they are incurred.

(d) Gains or losses that arise on disposal or retirement of an asset are measured as the difference between net disposal proceeds
P and.uhg? ing value of property, plant and equipment and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the same is

For KANISHK ALUMINIUM INDIALTD.
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&

7

8

9

Depreciation/Amortisation ‘ .
Depreciation on tangible assets is provided on straight line basis over the estimated useful life of the assets using the indicative

-, useful life as prescribed under Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 except as mentioned in below table. The Company has

used the following useful life to provide depreciation on property, plant and equipment:

Asset Category Useful Life (in years)
Buildings - ) 30
Plant and Machinery 25
Furniture and Fixtures 10
Vehicles 8
Office equipment 6
Computers 3

Intangible assets are amortised over the estimated period of economic benefits on a straight line basis, commencing from the
fate the assets are available to the Company for its use. '

The estimated useful life of the intangible assets and the amortisation period are reviewed at the end of each financial year and
the amortisation period is revised to reflect the changed pattern, if any. intangible asset is derecognized on disposal, or when no
future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal.

Impadirment of Assets ;

The Company periodically assesses whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, the
"Company estimates the recoverable amount of the asset and if such recoverable of the asset is less than carrying cost of the
asset, then the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. The deduction is treated as an impairment loss and is
recognised in profit and 16ss account. z '

If at the balance sheet date there is an indication that ifa previously assessed impairment loss no longer exits. the recoverable
amount is reassessed and the asset is reflected at the recoverable amount subject to maximum of depreciable historical cost. An
impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the carrying amount of asset does not exceed the net book value that would
have been determined; if no impairment loss had been recognised.

Due consideration is given at the balance sheet date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment of the
company’s assets as defined in Accounting Standard 28 — “Impairment of Assets” issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Tndia and the management is of the opinion that none of the property. plant and equipment were impaired as at
the date of the Balance sheet.

Inventories

Inventories are valued after providing for obsolescence. Raw Materials is valued at cost and finished (traded) goods are valued
at lower of cost and net realizable value, on first-in, first-out basis. Work in progress were also assessed at the end of the year
and valued based on the cost associated to that respective WIP. )

, When there has been a decline in the price of materials and it is estimated that the cost of the finished products will exceed net

realisable value, the Raw materials are written down to net realisable value. In such circumstances, the replacement cost of the
materials may be the best available measure of their net realisable value.

Stock as at the end of year has been valued as per FIFO excluding GST and other taxes.

Investments

Investments are classified into Non-current and Current Investments.

Non - current Investments are valued at cost. Provision for diminution in the value is made to recognize a decline, other than
temporary, in the value of long-term investments.

Current investments are valued at cost or market value, whichever is less.

Employee Benefits
Defined benefit plans
The company has recognized the gratuity payable in the books of accounts based on the Certificates of Actuarial Valuation as

: * For KANnHKALUMlNlUM INDIALTD.
es not have a policy for leave encashment -
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Defined contribution plan

Employees of the company who are eligible to receive benefits under the Employees Provident Fund & Miscellancous
Provisions Act are defined contribution plan. Both the employee and the employer make monthly contributions as per the
provisions of the act.

These contributions are made to the fund administered & managed by the Government of India.

The contribution to the provident fund is charged to the statement of profit and loss for the year when an employee renders the

reidaled services.

10 Borrowing Costs

I3

Borrowing Costs that are attributable and exclusively relating to the acquisition, construction of the qualifying assets are
capitalized as part of cost of such assets up to the date the assets are ready.for its intended use. All other borrowing costs are
recognized as an expense in the year in which they are incurred.

' Segment Reporting
The accounting policies adopted for segment reporting are in conformity with the accounting policies adopted for the Company.
Further, inter-segment revenue will be accounted for based on the transaction price agreed to between segments which is
primarily market based. Revenue and expenses have been identified to segments on the basis of their relationship to the
operating activities of the segment. Revenue and expenses, which relate to the Company as a whole and are not allocable to
segments on a reasonable basis.

12 Foreign Currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currency are recognized at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions.

Exchange differences arising on foreign exchange transactions settled during the year are recognised in profit and loss for the
year.

All other monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency are restated at the rates ruling at the year end and all
exchange gains/ losses arising there from are adjusted to the Profit and Losses Account.

Exchange differences arising on long-term foreign currency monetary items related to acquisition of fixed asset are capitalized
and depreciated over the remaining useful life of the asset.

13. Earnings per share

.

* The basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit/loss after tax available to equity shareholders for the year by

the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders
and the weighted average number of shares outstanding' during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential
equity shares.

14 Income tax

Tax expense compromises of both current and deferred taxes, Provision for current taxes is made at the current tax rates. Based
on the assessable income after considering tax allowances and exemptions it terms with the applicable Income Computation
Disclosure Standards (ICDS). Deferred income taxes reflects the current year timing differences between taxable income and
accounting income for the year and reversal of timing differences of earlier years. Deferred taxes is measured based on the tax
rates and the tax laws enacted or substantially enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets are recognized only to the
extent that there is reasonable certainity that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax
asset can be realized. Unrecognized deferred tax asset of earlier years are reassessed and recognized to the extent that it has
become reasonable certain that future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax asset can be realised.

For KANTEHK ALUMINIUM INDIA LTD.
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15 Leases
Assets taken on lease under which, all the risks and rewards of ownership are effectively retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line
basis, over the lease term. .
16 Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent asset
“, Provisions involving substantial degree of estimation in measurement are recognized when there is a present obligation as a
result of past events and it is probable that there will be an outflow of resources. Contingent liabilities are not recognized but are
disclosed in the notes and are not usually provided for unless it is probable that future outcome may be detrimental to the
company. Contingent assets are neither recognized nor disclosed in the financial statements.

17 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and balances with banks. The Company considers all highly liquid investments with an
original maturity of three months or less and that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash to be cash equivalents.

18 Cash flow statement
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit or loss before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions
ol a non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash (lows arising from
regular revenue generating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

19 Related Party Disclosure
Disclosure is made as per the requirements of Accounting Standard 18. Related Party Disclosures and as per the clarification
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accounts of India. :

For KANBSHK ALUMINIUM INDIA LTD.
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Annexure V - Notes to Financial statements

(All amounts in Indian Rupees in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

2 Statement of Share Capital

The previous year figures have been reworked, regrouped, rearranged and reclassified wherever necessary. Accordingly amounts
nd other disclosure for the preceding years are included as an integral part of the current year financial statement and are to be
read in relation to the amounts and other disclosure relating to the current year

2.1 Equity Share Capital

As at- As at
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Nos Amount Nos Amount
Authorised Share Capital : :
Equity Shares of ¥ 10/- each 15,000,000.00 1,500.00 10,900,000.00 1,090.00
Issued, Subscribed & Fully Paid up Share Capital :
Equity Shares of ¥ 10/- each 9,440,000.00 944.00 5,900,000.00 590.00
Total 9,440,000.00 944.00 5,900,000.00 590.00
2.2 The reconciliation of the number of Equity shares outstanding
’ As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Nos. Amount Nos. Amount
Equity shares
No. of shares at the beginning of the year 5,900,000.00 590.00 4,900.000.00 490.00
Movement during the year 3,540,000.00 354.00 1,000,000.00 100.00
Shares outstanding at the end of the year 9,440,000.00 944.00 5,900,000.00 590.00

Notes:

1. The authorised share capital has been increased from 21090 lakhs to 21500 lakhs pursuant to the resolution passed at the
Extraordinary General Meeting (EGM) held on 8th March, 2025

2.3 Details of shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares

As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Nos. % Holding Nos. % Holding
Parmanand Aganval 7.839,960.00° 83.05% 4.900.000.00 83.05%
Khushboo Agarwal 1,600,000.00 16.95% 1,000,000.00 16.95%
Total 9,439,960.00 100.00% 5,900,000.00 100.00% |

For KANf$HK ALUMINIUM INDIA LTD.
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2.4 Details of Promoters shareholding

As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
: Nos. % Holding Nos. % Holding
Parmanand Agarwal 7.,839,960.00 83.05% 4.900.000.00 83.05%
Khushboo Agarwal 1,600,000.00 16.95% - -
Ashish Agarwal 8.00 0.00% - -
Total 9,439,968.00 100.00% 4,900,000.00 83.05%
2.5 Change In Promoters shareholding During the year
As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Promoter Name

No. of Shares

% change

No. of Shares

Yo dmnge

during the during the year
Parmanand Agarwal 7,839,960.00 - 4,900,000.00 3.46%
Khushboo Agarwal 1,600.,000.00 - - -
Ashish Agarwal ' 8.00 - -
. | Total 9,439,968.00 - 4,900,000.00 -
'+ Notes:

1. Mrs. Khushboo Agarwal and Mr.Ashish Agarwal is classified as promoter pursuant to resolution passed at Board Metting (BM) held on 23rd

April 2024

2.6 Terms/ Rights attached to equity shares

(a) The company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of  10/- per share with voting rights as to dividend and
voting. During the year no dividend has been paid/declared during the vear.
(b) In the event of liquidation of the company, after distribution of all preferential payments, the holders of equtiy shares will be

entitled to receive the remaining assets of the company. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of cquity shares held

by the company.

(c) During the immediately preceding five years, the company has not issued any bonus equity shares.
(d) Refer note number 49 of Notes to Restated Financial Statements appearing in Annexure VII.

For KANISHK ALUMINIUM INDIA LTD.
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Annexure V - Notes to Financial statements %
(All amounts in Indian Rupees in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

3 Statement of Reserves and Surplus

f

As at As at

[RERS March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024

a) Securities premium

Opening balance : 500.00 -
(+) Addition during the year - 500.00
(-) Utilized for Bonus Issue _ ’ 354.00
N Closing balance (a) 146.00 500.00
b) Surplus/(deficit) in the statement of profit and loss
Opening balance 3 282.85 112,33
Add: Profit/(Loss) for the year 304.45 170.52
i 587.30 282.85
Less: Surplus utilized for Bonus Issue ' -
Less: Prior Period Items 19.79
Closing balance (b) 567.52 282.85
Total reserves and surplus (a+h) 713.52 782.85
Nofe:
1. The figures disclosed above are based on the restated summary statement of assets and liabilities of the
Company

2. Company docs not have any Revaluaton Reserve.
4 Statement of Long-Term Borrowings

As at As at

icul
Particulars March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024

(a) Term Loan

] Secured Loans :
T From Bank 470.89 153.30
From Financial Institution 63.89 71.58

(b) Loan ahd Advances
Unsecured Loans "
From Bank ' %

From Related Parties 235.68 406.68
Total 770.46 631.56
Notes:

1. The terms and conditions and other information in respect of Secured Loans and Unsecured Loans are given
in Note- 4.1 and Note -4 2

2. The Company does not have any continuing default in repayment of loans and interest as on the reporting

date.
. As at As at
Particulars
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Secured : , ’
. From Financial Institution Daimler Financial Services India
P B Pvt Ltd 63.89 71.58
From Banks AU Small Finance Bank - 153.30
From Banks City Union Bank g 470.89 -
Unsecured -
From Related Party * [Mr. Parmanand Agarwal 35.68 406.68
Total 770.46 631.56

For KANI§HK ALUMINIUM INDIA LTD.
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Annexure V - Notes to Financial statements
(All amounts in Indian Rupees in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

4 Statement Of Principal Terms Of Secured Loans And Assets Charged As Security

12% upto 31/03/2022

P AN Particulars Nature of loan sanﬂ.“m amount Rate of interest Period Nature of security
¢ (Xin lakhs )
Daimler Financial Services |y 1oai 72.80 8.55%| 48 Months | Hypotheciation of Mercedes E220D
India Pvt Ltd
1. Hypothecation of Stock and hook Debts 2 Industrial Land &
N : Building Siuated at E-849, IV Phase, RIICO Boranda, Jodhpur 3
ank T 4 1259 _ : s hase, .
Ciby/Union B i £ o $4:Moiths Residential Plot no 120 & 121, KH no 40, Sumernagar. boranada.
jodhpur
|
|
1. Hypothecation of Stock and hook Debts 2 Industrial Land &
: R Building Siuated at E-849, IV Phase, RIICO Boranda, Jodhpur 3
0/ ».
AU Small Finance Bank Cash credit Limit 1,500 9.25% 12 Months Residential Plot no 120 & 121. KH no 40, Sumernacar. boranad:
jodhpur
: 1. Hypothecation of Stock and book Debts. 2. Industrial Land &
2 Building Siuated at E-849, IV Phase, RIICO Boranda, Jodhpur 3
% 3 : %
. "?U Small Finance Bank Term Loan 165.4 10% 36 Months Residential Plot no 120 & 121, KH no 40, Sumernagar, boranada,
: N .
¢ jodhpur 4. F-869A, IV-PHASE, Boranada, Jodhpur
b 1. Hypothecation of Stock and book Debts. 2. Industrial Land &
Building Siuated at E-849, IV Phase, RIICO Boranda, Jodhpur 3 |
AU Small Finance Bank Term Loan Residential Plot no 120 & 121, KH no 40, Sumernagar, borarada,
jodhpur
119 9% 18 Months _
1. Hypothecation of Stock and book Debts. 2 Industrial Land &
. Building Siuated at E-849, TV Phase. RIICO Boranda, Jodhpur 3
: : ' Residential Plot no 120 & 121. KH no 40, Sumemagar, boranada,
jodhpur
516 10% 46 Months
4 Statement Of Terms & Conditions Of Unsecured Loans
Below are the disclosure for Unsecured Loans : 1
’ l+<  Particulars Sanctioned Amount ( in Lakhs) Rate of interest Terms
Khushboo Agarwal 500.00 - Repayable on demand
9, .
Indra Mani Agarwal 500.00 0% from 1/04/2022, " Repayable on demand

Om Prakash Agarwal 500.00

0% from 1/04/2022,
12% upto 31/03/2022-

Repayable on demand

Ashish Agarwal & Sons

Repayable on demand

Huf 200.00 -
O Praslis:*;\g:\:rwal & 200.00 - Repayable on demand
Parmanand Agarwal 1,000.00 - 60 Months
Madhu Agarwal 500.00 - Repayable on demand

For KAN/BHK ALUMINIUM INDIA LTD.

DIRECTOR



Kanishk Aluminium India Limited

(Formerly known as: Kanishk Aluminium India Private Limited)

Plot No E-849 A, Fourth Phase Ricco Boranada,
Jodhpur, Rajasthan, India, 342001
CIN: U27109RJ2018PLC063198

Annexure V - Notes to Financial statements

(All amounts in Indian Rupees in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

5

Statement Of Deferred Tax (Assets) / Liabilities

As at

Particulars o
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Deferred tax liability on Property, Plant and Equipment 108.62 84.90
Less :- Deferred tax asset on Provision for Gratutiy -
Add :- Deferred tax liablities on Provison for Gratuity 3.13
Deferred tax Liabilities (Net) 111.75 84.90
Statement of Long Term Provisions
s As at As at
P |
e March 31,2025 | March 31,2024
a) Provision for Gratuity (Refer Note no 29) 10.44 8.07
Total 10.44 8.07
Statement of Short-Term Borrowings
) As at As at
i March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024
(a) Loans repayble on demand from banks
From Banks And Financial Institutions
Cash Credit/ Bank Overdraft 1,492.99 1,436.62
(b) Loans and advances from related parties - -
(¢) Credit Card 10.51 16.27
Total 1,503.49 1,452.89
Statement Of Trade Payables
As at I As at l

Particulars

March 31, 2025

March 31,2024

a) lotal outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small

enterprises (Refer Note.) 824.30 537.28
b) Total outstanding dues of Creditors Other than micro
: : 2.35 1.86
enterprises and small enterprises
Total ) i B o 826.65 5§39.14
Trade Payables Ageing Schedule - As at 31 March 24
Particulars b 4 8
March 31. 2025 March 31. 2024
(i) MSME
a) Less than 1 year 823.44 529.73
b) 1 - 2 years - 6.69
c)2 -3 years - 0.86
d) More than 3 years 0.86 -
Total (i) 824.30 537.28
(ii) Others
a) Less than 1 year 1.27 0.77
b) 1 -2 years - 1.08
2 - 3 years "
re than 3 years

539.14

SSUANSHK ALILBANIUM INDIALTD.

i e

DIRECTOR
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Kanishk Aluminium India Limited

(rornierly Kiown as: ianishk Aluminium India Private Linited)

Plot No E-849 A, Fourth Phase Ricco Boranada,
Jodhpur, Rajasthan, India, 342001
CIN: U27109RJ2018PLC063198

Annexure V - Notes to Financial statements

(All amounts in Indian Rupees in Lakhs unless othervyise stated) -

RS

9

- 10

Note: The Company does not have any disputed outstanding balances.

Statement of Other Current Liabilities
. As at As at
1
g March 31,2025 | March 31,2024
(a) Statutory Liabilities
(i) Tax deducted at source /Tax collected at source liability 2.23 6.71
(ii) Goods and Services tax liability - 4.83
(iii) Employee providend Fund and Employee State Insurance 0.23 0.25
(b) Others
i) Advances from customers 18.25 8.55
ii) Provision for expenses 1.00 0.90
iii) Salary payable 14.59 7.01
iv) Security From Baari Fabricators 14.50
Total 50.80 28.25
Statement of Short-Term Provisions
. As at As at
e March 31,2025 | March 31,2024
a) Provision for Taxation (Net off Advance Tax) 96.03 -
b) Provision for Gratuity (Refer Note no 29) 2.01 -
Total 98.05 -

For KAISHK ALUMINIUM INDIA LTD.
4@—2%4

DIRECTOR
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Kanishk Aluminium India Limited

(Formerly known as: Kanishk Aluminium India Private Limited)

Plot No E-849 A, Fourth Phase Ricco Boranada,
Jodhpur, Rajasthan, India, 342001
CIN: U27109RJ2018PLC063198

Annexure V - Notes to Financial statements

(All amounts in Indian Rupees in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

11.B  Capital Work in Progress

Particulars e oAt
March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024
Capital Work in Progress - *
Total - =
» Capital Work in Progress Ageing schedul
. As at As at
Particul, 2 :
ey March 31,2025 | March 31,2024
- Project in Progress
a) Less than 1 year - -
b) 1 - 2 years - -
)2 -3 years s -
d) more than 3 years - -
Total - -
- Projects temporarily suspended
a) Less than | year - -
D) 1 -2 ycals -
)2 -3 years - -
d) more than 3 years - -
Total . .
12 Statement of Other Non-Current Asset .
i As at As at
——— March 31,2025 | March 31,2024
(Unsecured, Considered good)
Keyman Insurance Policy 25.68 20.56
Security Deposits 13.82 13.82
Total 39.49 34.38
13 Statement of Inventories
Particulars o Asiat
) March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024
Raw materials 36.06 169.06
Consumables 414.85 50.16
Finished Goods 1,998.57 1,441.24
[Total - B 2,449.48 | 1,660.46
Classifiaction of Finished Goods
Particulars i Rl
March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024
|Aluminium Extruded Profiles ’ 1,254.32 - 1,441.24
Aluminium Doors & Windows Profiles (Baari By Kanishk) 744.25 -
1,998.57 1,441.24

For KANITK ALU MlNIU%DIA LTD.

D‘Rpr\vﬁh
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Statement of Trade receivables

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

Secured considered good

|Unsecured considered good

1,088.21

853.87

Total

1,088.21

853.87

Ageing for trade reveivables

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables
- Considered Good

a) Less than 6 months

b) 6 months - 1 year

c) 1 -2 years

d) 2 - 3 years

¢) More than 3 years

1,087.35

0.86

851.79
1.59
0.49

Total

1,088.21

853.87

- Consider Doubtful
a) Less than 6 months
b) 6 months - 1 year
c) 1 -2 years

d) 2 - 3 years

¢) More than 3 years

‘| Total

Statement of Cash and cash equivalents

Note: The Company does not have any disputed Trade Receivable Balance balances.

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

Cash and bank balances

a) Cash on Hand

b) Balance with banks

-In current accounts
-In Fixed deposits

Total

10.96

Statement of Short-Term Loans and Advances

Particulars

As at
Mairch 31, 2025

_ Asat
March 31, 2024

Unsecured, considered good

43.78

a) Advances to suppliers 8.77 2.72
b) Advances to Ricco 100.04
Total 108.81 2.72
' Other current assets
Particulars ARt .
March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024
a) Balances with statutory authorities 36.83 1.81
b) Pre IPO Expenses 6.94 15.47
17.28

For KA

HK ALUMINIUM INDIALTD.

DIRECTOR



Kanishk Aluminium India Limited - _
(Formerly known as: Kanishk Aluminium India Private Limited)
Plét No E-849 A, Fourth Phase Ricco Boranada,

Jodhpur, Rajasthan, India, 342001

CIN: U27109RJ2018PLC063198

Annexure V - Notes to Financial statements
(All amounts in Indian Rupees in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)
18 Statement of Revenue from Operations

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Sale of Products
Manufactured products 5,978.22 5.930.46
Total 5,978.22 5,930.46
19 Statement of Other Income
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Interest income - 0.11
Commission Income - &
Foreign exchange gain 1.96 227
Duty drawback 11.18 6.38
Insurance 1.65 1.37
Miscellaneous income 13.34 13.09
Interest on Income tax refund 1.40 -
Sundry Creditors Written Off 7.49
Total 37.02 23.43
20 S'fatement of Cost of materials consumed
Baviionl Year ended Year ended
arficuiars March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024
Opening stock 219.22 277.53
Add: Purchases 5,562.89 5,124.42
Add: Direct Expenses 133.96 113.21
Less: Closing stock 450.91 219.22
5,465.15 5.295.95

MINIUM INDIA LTD. ’

For KANJ§HK ALY Féy

DIRECTOR




Kanishk Aluminium India Limited

(Formerly known as: Kanishk Aluminium India Private Limited)
Plot No E-849 A, Fourth Phase Ricco Boranada,

Jodhpur, Rajasthan, India, 342001

CIN: U27109RJ2018PLC063198

Annexure V - Notes to Financial statements
(All amounts in Indian Rupees in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)
21 Statement of Changes in Inventory of Finished Goods

Particulars Year ended Year ended

P March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Inventory at the Beginning of the Year
Finished Goods 1,441.24 1,260.83
Inventory at the End of the Year
Finished Goods 1,998.57 1,441.24
Total -557.33 _ -180.41

Note: T hemiﬁVéhtory has been physically verified on periodic basis by the management.

22 Statement of Employee Benefits Expenses

Barticulnes Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
¢ Sélaries, wages and bonus 87.23 63.67
Contributions to Provident and other funds 3.27 3.64
Director Remuneration 31.47
Staff welfare - 2.69
Gratuity expenses (Refer Note 29) 5.29 8.07
Total 127.25 78.07
23 Statement of Finance Costs
RS — Year ended Year ended f
e March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024
Interest on Bank loan 158.78 195.15
Interest on unsecured loan - 8.88
¢ |Interest on others 8.48 1.60
Bank Charges 3.00 4.02
Total 170.26 209.65 |

For KAl\iﬁHK ALUMINIUM_INDIALTD..

DIRECTOR



¢ I;z;r ticulars Year ended Year ended
March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024
Advertisement 3.64 1.82
Power and fuel 137.47 170.83
Professional fees 7.80 3.27
Audit fee 1.00 0.90
Rent 18.00 18.00
Rates and taxes 2.83 6.75
Donation 0.12 -
Travelling Expenses 19.96 (0.33
Commission 6.83 8.84
Communication Expense 0.56 0.11
Frieght charges 29.99 32.86
, |Export/shipment charges 0.16 0.13
Insurance Premium 3.13 2.72
Membership Subscription Fees 0.76 0.91
Office Expenses 12.38 6.19
Repairs & Maintenance 50.14 3741
Security Expenses - 0.27
Miscellaneous expenses 2:35 -
Loss on sale of land 16.84 -
Sundry Balance Written Off (Net) 2.23 1.90
Total 316.20 303.25
Payment to auditor
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024
k Statutory Audit fees 1.00 0.90
Total 1.00 0.90
Earnings in Foreign Currencies
Particulars Year ended ’ Year ended
March 31,2025 | March 31,2024
Export of Goods calculated on FOB basis 449.00 277.85
Total 449.00 277.85
Expenditure in Foreign Currencies
N~ Year ended Year ended
o saragulars March 31. 2025 | March 31,2024 _
_é&( | Roya"@;\((now-How, Professional fees, interest, Other Matters For KANISHK ALUMINIUM INDIALTD.
S( ¥ Yéitanz%\‘ M\ gt 7A
i( 010 7 ‘

Kanishk Aluminium India Limited

(Formerly known as: Kanishk Aluminium India Private Limited)
Plot No E-849 A, Fourth Phase Ricco Boranada,

Tndhpur. Rajasthan. Tndia, 342001

CIN: U27109RJ2018PLC063198

Annexure V - Notes to Financial statements .
(All amounts in Indian Rupees in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

24 Statement of Other Expenses '

DIRECTOR



Kanishk Aluminium India Limited

¢Formerly known as: Kanishk Aluminium India Private Limited)
Plot No E-849 A, Fourth Phase Ricco Boranada,

Jodhpur, Rajasthan, India, 342001

CIN: U27109RJ2018PLC063198

Annexure VI - Other Notes to financial statements
(All amounts in Indian Rupees in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

25 Contingent Liabilities And Capital Commitments

There are no contingent liabilities such as claim against the Company, guarantees and other money for which the Company is contingently liable for
the period ended 31st March, 2025. Also note there are no capital commitments as confirmed by Management.

20 degment Reporting

Based on the guiding principles of the accounting standards on 'Segment Reporting' (AS-17), notified under the Companies (Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2014, and the Companies (Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016, the company’s primary business segment is the manufacturing of
Aluminium Profiles and other articles through Extrusion process. Since the company operates solely in India, i.e.. in only one business and
geographical segment, no further disclosures are required under AS-17.

27 Disclosure under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act (MSMED) 2006:

(RS
The Micro, Small & Medium Enterprise have been identified by the company from the available information, which has been relicd upon by the
auditors. According to such identification , the disclosure in respect to micro and small enterprises as MSME Act, 2006 is as follows:

*.

As at As at

Particulars March 31,2025 | March 31,2024

a) (i) The principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier at

the end of accounting year included in trade payables 821.95 535.74
(11) The interest due on above 235 1.54
The total of (i) & (ii) 824.30 537.28

b) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16
Fihe Aot

¢) The amount of interest due and payable for the period (where

the principal has been paid but interest under the MSMED Act,

2006 not paid) - -

d) The amounts of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the ,

end of financial year / period 3.90 1.54

- |e) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even
¢ "“lin the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues
above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of
disallowance of a deductible.expenditure under section 23 of the
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 - -

-

Total 824.30 537.28

*The above information has been given in respect of such vendors to the extent they could be identified as micro and small enterprises as per
MSME in the act on the basis of information available with the company, from the date when the vendors provide their confirmation that they are

covered under the act and the same has been relied upon by the auditors.

Interest will remain unpaid until the vendor demands for such interest or else will be reveresed as and when law of limitation surpases

For KANISHK ALUMINIUM INDIA LTD.

DIRECTOR




Kanishk Aluminium India Timited

(Formerly known as: Kanishk Aluminium India Private Limited)
Plot No E-849 A, Fourth Phase Ricco Boranada,

Jodhpur, Rajasthan, India, 342001

CIN: U27109RJ2018PLC063198

Annexure VI - Ot‘her Notes to financial statements
(All amounts in Indian Rupees in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

28 Related party disclosures under accounting standard (AS-18)

As required under Accounting Standard 18 "Related Party Disclosures" as notified pursuant to Company (Accounting Standard) Rules 2006, following are details of

transactions during the year with related parties of the company as defined in AS 18.

Key Management Personnel (KMP)

Names of related parties and description of relationship with the Com‘[‘mny

Name Relation
Parmanand Agarwal  |Managing Director
Khushboo Agarwal Whole Time Director
Ashish Agarwal Whole Time Director (wef /st May, 2024 )
itin Pandya Chief Tinancial Officer (we/ 20th Sepiember, 2024)
Ruchi Gupta Company Secretary (wef 7th January, 2025 to 1st March, 2025)
T Company Secretary (wef 20th September, 2024 to 31st December,
2024)
Prachi Mittal Company Secretary (wef 7th March, 2025 )

: - T - b
iri. Pheladonshiy with Mr. Parmanand Agarwal Mrs( Kinsition Mr. Ashish Agarwal
No. |Promoters : Agarwal

b Father Mr. Om Prakash Agarwal Mr. Bhera Ram Seeyol Mz, Pa.rmanand

o Agarwal
J i i

2 Mother Late Smt. Indramani Agarwal MS' amng Devi Mrs. Madhu Agarwal

= Seeyol

1 Spouse Mrs. Madhu Agarwal Mr. Ashish Agarwal frs i Khogftboc

Agarwal

4 Brother Mr. Naresh Agarwal and Mr. Lalit Agarwal |Mr. Ratan Deep Seeyol|[NA

8 Sister Ms. Pushpa Jindal and Ms. Anita Agarwal Ms. Rajul paderna Ms. Neha Agarwal

and Ms. 1.ata Hooda

6. s ; Mr. Kanishk Agarwal |Mr. Kanishk Agarwal

So0 . b and Mr. Ram Agarwal |and Mr. Ram Agarwal

4 Daughter Ms. Neha Agarwal Ms. Dikshita Agarwal |Ms. Dikshita Agarwal

. Spouse’s Father Mr. Jagdish Prasad Singhal P, ERmRos Mr. Bhera Ram Seeyol

) ; Agarwal -
; ; N ' i Ms. Ja Devi

4 ~ |Spouse’s Mother Late Narayani Devi Mrs. Madhu Agarwal Se;yo:mna =
e

= Spouse’s Brother b Poamiod gacomiland Wr. Frigsen NA Mr. Ratan Deep Seeyol

Agarwal
11. Lo . o Ms. Rajul Maderna
Spouse’s Sister NA Ms. Neha Agarwal i Ms. Liita Hoadd

For KAN/SHK ALUMINIUM INDIA LTD.

DIRECTOR



Sr. Nature of Relationship

Entities

Any Body Corporate (other than Subsidiary & Associate) in which
20% or more of the share capital is held by the Promoters or an )

1 immediate relative of the Promoters or a firm in which the

Promoters or any one or more of his immediate relatives is a

member;

1. Kanishk Metals
2. P.N Agarwal & Co
3. Agarwal Hardware
4. Bhagyalaxmi Steel Industries
6. Jodhpur Radiator Company
7. Arrow Radiator India
8. Agarwal Aluminium

Any Body Corporate in which a body corporate as provided in (A)
above holds 20% or more, of the equity share capital; and

1. Agarwal Automobiles

Any HUF or firm in which the aggregate share of the Promoters and
their relatives is equal to or more 20% of the total capital.

1. Pramod Agarwal & Sons HUF
2. Praveen Acarwal & Sons HUF
3. Ashish Agarwal & Sons HUF
4. Naresh Kapil Agarwal HUF
5. Jagdish Prasad Agarwal and Sons HUF
6. Om Prakash Agarwal & Sons HUF
7. Shri Ram Aluminium Company
(Proprietorship of Mr. Ashish Agarwal till
) 31/03/2023)

Note: The above information has been determined to the extent such parties

have been identified on the basis of information

B The following transactions were carried out with the related parties in the ordinary course of business

available with the company.

‘| As at As at
N i .
o N Mareh 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Director Remuneration 15.92 -
Parmanand Agarwal Unsecured Loan Repaid 171.50 175.62
Unsecured Loan Received 0.50 463.00
Director Remuneration 6.00 6.00
hushboo Agirwal Unsceured Loan Repaid 160.28 |
Director Remuneration 9.55 6.00
Ashish Agarwal Unsecured Loan Repaid - 47.36
Reimbursement of Expenses 9.27 3.53
. Reimbursement of Expenses 0.17 -
Nitin Pandya Remuneration : 1.59 -
¢ '~ Ruchi Gupta Remuneration 0.34 -
Divya Moondra Remuneration 0.52 -
Madhu Agarwal Unsecured Loan Repaid - 158.72
Interest Paid - -
Om Prakash Agarwal Unsecured Loan Received - 64.06
Unsecured Loan Repaid - 199.28
Interest Paid - -
Indramani Agarwal Unsecured Loan Received - 64.06
Unsecured Loan Repaid - 128.12
Sales 412.94 808.58
Kanishk Metals Purchases 41.71 277.50
Job Work Charges 1.03 4.26
Purchase 2.87 2.05
Agarwal Hardware Fixed Asset Purchase (Furniture) - -
Sales - -
Arrow Radiator India  |Purchases ' 11.61 13.63
" Shri Ram Aluminium
Company (Proprietorship of |Purchases = ¥
Mr. Ashish Agarwal) )
Sales 1,813.58 2,352.25
Purchases 10.24 33.01
| Rent 18.00 18.00
Job Work Charges BarKANISHK ALUM

IUM INDIALTD.

IRECTOR



C  Outstanding with related parties are as follows:

Name Transaction et E
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Remuneration payable 2.19 -
Parmanand Agarwal Unsecured loan payable 235.68 406.68
- Unsecured loan payable -
Khushboo Agarwal Remuneration payable 0.48 -
Ruchi Gupta Remuneration payable 0.17 -
Nitin Pandya Remuneration payable 0.25
Madhu Agarwal Unsecured loan payable -
Om Prakash Agarwal Unsecured loan payable - -
Indramani Agarwal Unsecured loan payable - -
Unsecured loan payable - -
Ashish Agarwal Remuneration payable 1.35 -
Reimbursement of Expenses Payable - -
Job Work Charges Payable - -
PN Agarwal and Company [Rent Payable - & -
Trade Receivable 397.16 468.65
s _ ! *Agarwal Hardware Trade Receivable - -
Arrow Radiator India Trade Payable 2.48 -
Shri Ram Aluminium
Company (Proprietorship of - -
Mr. Ashish Agarwal) Trade Payable
Job Work Charges Payable -
Kanishk Metals Trade Receivable 185.20 121.32

For KANI

K ALUMINIUM INDIALTD.

o] P

DIRECTOR
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Annexure VI - Other Notes to financial statements
(All amounts in Indian Rupees in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

29 Retirement benefit plan

In accordance with the Employee’s Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952, eligible employces of the Company are entitled to receive
henefits in respeet of provident fund, a defined contribution plan, in which both employees and the Company make monthly contributions at a specified
percentage of the covered employees’ salary. The contributions, as specified under the law, are made to the employee provident fund organization (EPFO).
As per the Accounting standard on “Employee Benefits” (AS-15) (Revised 2005) issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, the company

has contributed to various employee benefits as under:-

A

~Asat As at
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

kfl‘hé Company has recognized the following amounts in the
Profit and Loss Account for the year :-
Employer’s Contribution to Provident Fund 2.38 3.01
The Company has recognized the following amounts in the
Profit and Loss Account for the year :-
Employer’s Contribution to Employees’ State Insurance Scheme 0.36 0.62

Total 2.75 3.64

B Statement of Employee Benefits- Gratuity

The scheme is a non-contributory defined benefit arrangement providing gratuity benefits expressed in terms of final monthly salary and the period of past
scrvice. Lhe tollowing table shows the amounts recognized in the Balance Sheet.

Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of present value of the defined benefit obligation and plan assets are as follows:

A

I. Change in defined benefit As at As at
ﬂligation _|March 31,2025 |[March 31,2024
Obligations at beginning of the year 217 5.71
Service cost 515 2.31
Intérest cost 0.52 0.41
Past service cost - vested benefits - -
Benefit payments : - -
Actuarial loss/(gains) due to change in assumptions - -
Actuarial Loss/(gain) due to plan experience (0.38) (1.27)
Obligations at end of the year 12.46 7.17
As at As at
I1. Components of employer expenses March 31,2025 |March 31, 2024
Interest cost 0.52 0.41
Current Service cost 315 2.31
Expected return on plan assets - -
Pust Serviee Cost (Non Vested) - -
Actuarial (gain)/loss (0.38) (1.27)
Expenses recognized in the statement of profit & losses 5.29 1.46

FR § EAY)
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For KAB?‘SHK ALUMINIUM INDIALTD.
DIRECTOR
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5 < 3 As at As at
IIL. Net asset/liability recognised during the year March 31,2025 |March 31, 2024
Present Value of DBO 12.46 7.17
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of year - -
Funded status (deficit) (12.46) (7.17)
Unrecognized Past Service Cost - -
Net asset/(liability) recognised in the balance sheet (12.46) (7.17)
N — As at As at
IV. Reconciliation of net asset/(liability) March 31,2025 |March 31, 2024
Neg asset/(liability) at beginning of the year (1.46) -
Employer expense 5.29 1.46
Benefits payments made - -
Net asset/(liability) at end of the year (6.75) (1.46)
As at As at
(V) Actuarial Assumptions : March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Discount rate 7.00% 7.25%
Expected rate of return on assets 0.00% 0.00%
Withdrawal /attrition rate 10.00% 10.00%
Salary escalation 5.00% 5.00%
Mortality* IALM 2012-14 IALM 2012-14
Retirement age 60 60

* IAL: India Assured Lives Mortality modified Ult.

#Kindly note that provision as per AS-15 were specifically prepared for the restated fianancial statement as per Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
in India. - : i ’

IALTD

For KAISHK ALUMINIUM IND l

DIRECTOR
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Annexure VI - Other Notes to financial statements
(All amounts in Indian Rupees in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

30 Earnings per Share (EPS) : Computation of Earnings Per Share is as follows
As at As at

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Particulars

Equity Shares

Profit / (Loss) after tax attributable to equity share holders (Rs.) 304.45 170.52
Total number of equity shares of Rs. 10 each i 94.40 59.00
Weighted average number of shares in calculating EPS 94.40 | - 79.32
Basic / Diluted Earning per Share ' 3.23 2.15

[ 31 Capitalisation Statement
The following table sets forth our Company's capitalisation as at mar 31, 2024, derived from our Restated standalone Financial Information adn as
adjusted for the Offer. This table below should be read in conjuction with the sections titled with Restated standalone Financial Information, Other
Financial Information and Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Particulars As at March 31, 2025|As at 31 March,
2024

Total Borrowings

Long-Term Borrowings 770.46 631.56
Short-Term Borrowings 1,503.49 1,452.89
Total Borrowings (A) 2,273.96 2,084.45
Shareholders' funds ' ) .
Share capital 944.00 590.00
Reserves and surplus 713552 782.85
Total Shareholders' funds (B) 1,657.52 1,372.85
Total (C) = (A) + (B) j 3,931.48 3,457.30
Long Term Borrowings/Equity 0.46 0.46
Total borrowings/Total equity (A/B) : 137 |° 1.52
. Notes:

o 1) Short-Term Borrowings represent which are expected to be paid/payable within 12 months

2) Long-Term Borrowings represent debts other than Short term Borrowings as defined above
3) The figures disclosed above are based on restated statement of Assets and Liabilities of the Company as at January, 31 2025

32 Leases

Year ended Year ended

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

1. Future Minimum Lease Payments

- Not later than one year 18.00 18.00
- Later than one year and not later than five years 60.00 72.00
- Later than five years - 6.00
2. Lease payments recognized in the statement of profit and loss 18.00 18.00

For KA%SHK ALUMINIUM INDIALTD.

DIRECTOR




Kanishk Aluminium India Limited

(Formerly known as: Kanishk Aluminium India Private Limited)
Plot No E-849 A, Fourth Phase Ricco Boranada,
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Annexure VI - Other Notes to financial statements
(All amounts in Indian Rupees in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

i 33 Statement Of Mandatory Accounting Ratios

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Net Worth (A) 1,657.52 1,372.85
Average Net worth (B) 1,515.19 1,372.85
EBITDA 652.49 451.42
Restated Profit after tax 304.45 170.52

Less: Prior period item - .

Adjusted Profit after Tax (C) 304.45 170.52
Number of Equity Share outstanding as on the End of Year/Period ( D) 59.00 59.00
Weighted average no of Equity shares at the time of end of the year (E) 94.40 79.32
Current Assets (F) 3,701.24 2,542.04
Current Liabilities (G) 2,478.99 2,020.27
Face Value per Share 10 10
Restated Basic and Diluted Earning Per. Share 3.23 2.15
Return on Net worth (%) (C/B) - 20% 12%

. '[Net asset value per share (A/D) (Face Value of Rs. 10 Each) 28.09 23.27
“|Current Ratio (F/G) 1.49 1.26

For KANISHK ALUMINIUM INDIALTD.

DIRECTOR
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Kanishk Aluminium India Limited

(Formerly known as: Kanishk Aluminium India Private Limited)
Plot No E-849 A, Fourth Phase Ricco Boranada,

Jodhpur, Rajasthan, India, 342001

CIN: U27109RJ2018PLC063198

Annexure VII- Additional Regulatory Notes to fi ial stat
(All amounts in Indian Rupees in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

36 Wilful Defaulter

) The company has not been declared as wilful defaulter by a;ly bank or financial Instimtibn or other lender.
) +37 Relationship with Struck off Companies

The company has not had any transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013

38 Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) expenditure :
No amount is required to be spent by the Company towards corporate social responsibility under Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013.
39 The company has neither advanced or loaned or invested funds nor received any advances (either borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) from any
other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Intermediary shall
(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries)
(ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

40 Title deeds of immovable property held are in the name of company.

41 The company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment, hence no disclosure is required

42 No proceeding has been initiated or pending against the company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules
made thereunder.

43 The Company has no tr ion with companies struck off under section 248 of the Act, or under section 560 of the companies Act, 1956.
44 The company has not traded or invested or dealt in Crypto currency or Virtual currency during the financial year

45 There are no Loans and Advances in the nature of loan

s that are granted to promoters, directors, KMP's and the related parties either severally or jointly with any other person, that
are repayable on demand. : :

46 There is no scheme of arrang pproved in terms of section 230 t0 237 of Companies Act, 2013.
[N
47 The previous year’s figures have been regrouped / reclassified wherever
necessary.

y to correspond with the current year’s classification. Further, disclosures are amended wherever

48 The additional information and other regulatory disclosures called for by Schedule 11 in the form of notes to Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit and Loss Account, if not
expressly mentioned elsewhere, is either NIL or Not Applicable to this company. .

49 A. Issue of Bonus Shares
On March 20, 2025, the Company issued 35,40,000 fully paid-up bonus equity shares in the ratio of 3:5 (i.e., 3 bonus shares for every 5 equity share held) to the existing

shareholders as on the record date.

50 Figures have been rounded off to the multiple of lakhs.

As per our report of even dated attached for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

For Mahaveer Gandhi And Associates 3 Kanishk Aluminium India Limited
For KANISHK ALUMINIUMINDIA LTD.

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number: 010756C

Mo

Mahaveer Gandhi 9 Parmanand Agarwal Khushboo Agarwal Dl RECTOR

Partner Chairman cum Managing Director Whole-Time Director

Membership Number: 074020 DIN: 08295200 - DIN: 08295199
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MAHAVEER GANDHI & ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants

To the Members of
KANISHK ALUMINIUM INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

We have audited the financial statements of KANISHK ALUMINIUM INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
("the Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2024, and the statement of
Profit and Loss and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required
and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March, 2024 its profit/loss and its cash flows
for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have
determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our
report.

Reporting of Key Audit Matters as per SA 701 is not applicable to the company as it is an unlisted
company.

Information other than the financial statements and auditors’ report thereon
The Company’s board of directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Board's Report including Annexures to

Board’s Report but does not incl ' i itor i
D oes not include the financial statements and our auditor's report theregm‘f”f—;;‘gx
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MAHAVEER GANDHI & ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information: we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone Financial
Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act’) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that
give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered

material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and mairitain.,
{JJ', -

professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: ek Ei"_"-’z-:::_‘?\}
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MAHAVEER GANDHI! & ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants

> Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

5 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies
Act. 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

> Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

> Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order"), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we
give in the ‘Annexure A’, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the
Order, to the extent applicable. e

2. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:




MAHAVEER GANDHI & ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants

a)

@)

d)

9)

h)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014,

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31%t March, 2024
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March,
2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in ‘Annexure B'.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s report in accordance with the
requirements of Sec 197(16) of the Act as amended, we report that Section 197 is not applicable
to a private company. Hence reporting as per Section 197(16) is not required.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Réport in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:
i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position.
ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses
i There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.
iv.

a) The management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, no funds
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium
or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. e

H.0.: 6/23, Near Harsidhi Tent House, Kashipuri, Bhilwara-311001, Rajasthan
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Chartered Accountants

vi.

b) The management has represented, that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, no funds

q)

have been received by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding
Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

Based on such audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (i) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b)
above, contain any material mis-statement.

No dividend have been declared or paid during the year by the company.

The Company has used accounting software for maintaining its books of account for the
financial year ended March 31, 2024 which , as per the certificate of the expert provided by
the management, has a feature of recording audit trail ( edit log ) facility and the same has
operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the softwares and
there is no instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with.

As per proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for is applicable from
April 1, 2023, reporting under Rule 11(g) of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 on
preservation of audit trail as per the statutory requirements for record retention is not
applicable for the financial year ended March 31, 2024 and will be applicable from second
year onwards.

For MAHAVEER GANDHI AND ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants
FRN: 0710756C

N‘br"/

CA Mahaveer Gandhi

Partner

M. No. 074020

UDIN: 24074020BKBMPR8491

Date: 02-09-2024
Place: Jodhpur
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Annexure ‘A’
The Annexure referred to in paragraph 1 of Our Report on “Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements”

We report that:

a) (A) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars,
including quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and  Equipment;
(B) The Company does not have any intangible assets. Accordingly, clause
3(i)(@)(B) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the
basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the Property,
Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the management at
reasonable intervals; no material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification; '

c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis
of our examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds of all the
immovable properties (other than properties where the company is the
lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee)
disclosed in the financial statementsare held in the name of the company

d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis
of our examination of the records of the Company, the company has not
revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or
intangible assets during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under Clause
3(i)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis
of our examination of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings
have been initiated or are pending against the company for holding any
Benami Property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45
of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

a) As explained to us & on the basis of the records examined by us, in our opinion,
physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals by
the management. In our opinion, the coverage ‘and procedure of such
verification by the management is appropriate. No discrepancy of 10% or more
in the aggregate for each class of inventory was noticed on physical verification

Y,

of stocks by the management as compared to book records. SR
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b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the company has been sanctioned working
capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions
on the basis of security of current assets during any point of time of the year. The quarterly
returns or statements filed by the company with such banks or financial institutions are in
agreement with the books of account of the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the company, the company has not made investments in, nor provided any
guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or
unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties during the
year. Accordingly, provisions of clause 3(iii)(a), 3(iii)(b), 3(iii)(c), 3(iii)(d), 3(iii)(e) and 3(iii)(f) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records, in respect of loans, investments, guarantees, and security, provisions of section
185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 have been complied with except non charging of
interest on the loan.

The company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits
covered under sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the
Order is not applicable.

As per information & explanation given by the management, mainténance of cost records are
required by the Central Government under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act
and same has been maintained as required in Rules.

a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the company, the company is regular in depositing undisputed
statutory dues including Goods and Services Tax, provident fund, employees' state insurance,
income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and
any other statutory dues to the appropriate authorities. According to the information and
explanation given to us there were no outstanding statutory dues as on 31st of March, 2024
for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the company, there is no statutory dues referred to in sub-
clause (a) that have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions,

previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.
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a)

Q)

d)

e)

f)

a)

b)

a)

b)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the company, the company has not defaulted in repayment of
loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the company, the company has not been declared a willful
defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender

According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the
Company has utilized the money obtained by way of term loans during the year for the
purposes for which they were obtained

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of
the balance sheet of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short term basis have
been used for long term purposes by the company.

The Company does not hold any investment in any subsidiary, associate or joint venture (as
defined under the Act) during the year ended March 31, 2024. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(e) is
not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management,
the company has not raised loans during the year on the piédge of securities held in its
subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies. Accordingly, clause. 3(ix)(f) is not
applicable.

The company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not
applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the company has not made any preferential
allotment or private placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully, partially or
optionally convertible) during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not
applicable.

Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the
information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the company or any fraud on the
company has been noticed or reported during the course of audit.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12)
of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as

prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the-Ceatral
Government; : f,.ff EEp -\\
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¢) According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, no whistle-
blower complaints had been received by the company

xii.  The company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, clause 3(xii)(a), 3(xiiy(b) and 3(xii)(c) of the
Order is not applicable.

xiii.  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions
with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of Companies Act, where
applicable and the details have been disclosed in the financial statements, as required by the
applicable accounting standards;

XIV.
a) In our opinion and based on our examination, the company does not require to have an internal
audit system. Accordingly, clause 3(xiv)(a), of the Order is not applicable

b) Based on information and explanations provided to us, no internal audit had been conducted of
the company. Accordingly, clause 3(xiv)(a), of the Order is not applicable

xv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him and
hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company

XVi.
a) In our Opinion and based on our examination, the Company is not required to be registered
under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934). Accordingly, clause
3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

b) In our Opinion and based on our examination, the Company has not conducted any Non-
Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities without a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR)
from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause
3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

o) In our Opinion and based on our examination, the Company is not a Core Investment Company
(CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause

3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

d) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Group does not
have any CIC as part of the Group.

wii.  Based on our examination, the company has not incurred cash losses in the financial year and in
the immediately preceding financial year.

wviii.  There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

xix.  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of ?ﬁm

ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payme?tfﬁff'ﬁhanadﬁ?"@\?,
12(0.7+ Yo\
1= P
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liabilities, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention,
which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report
that company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and
when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state
that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the company. We further state that our
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any
guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date, will get discharged by the company as and when they fall due.

Based on our examination, the provision of section 135 are not applicable on the company.
Accordingly, clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable.

The company is not required to prepare Consolidate financial statement hence this clause is not
applicable.

For MAHAVEER GANDHI AND ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants e
FRN: 010756C R G
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CA Mahaveer Gandhi {\ 925z '3
Partner ‘{x‘%g\\} (‘?‘{: &
M. No. 074020 e
UDIN: 24074020BKBMPR8491
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Date: 02-09-2024
Place: Jodhpur
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Annexure “B”
Report on Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Kanishk Aluminium India
Private Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets,
the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility .

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the
Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists,
and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis

for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

f(%1 4

H.O: 6/23, Near Harsidhi Tent House, Kashipuri, Bhilwara-311001, Rajasthafx i; ( "-":fr% -

Email id: mgandhi10101@yahoo.com, +91-94141-14797, +91-96724-187686,, ' 72
%

WA T




MAHAVEER GANDHI & ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
<tatements for external purposes in sccordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that:

1. pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

2. provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and

3. provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For MAHAVEER GANDHI AN DCQ_;S_Q“CIATES
Chartered Accountants =~ =% AN,
FRN: 010756 (&

CA Mahaveer Gandhi
Partner

M. No. 074020

UDIN: 24074020BKBMPR8491

Date: 02-09-2024
Place: Jodhpur
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Kanishk Aluminium India Private Limited
CIN: U27109RJ2018PTC063198

P. No. E 849, Fourth Phase, RIICO Boranada, Jodhpur-342001

Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2024

(In Thousand Rs)

Particulars Note 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
L EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) Shareholders’ funds
(a) Share Capital 3 59,000.00 49,000.00
(b) Reserves and Surplus 4 78,285.38 11,233.42
Total 137,285.38 60,233.42
(2) Non-current liabilities
(a) Long-term Borrowings 5 57,256.30 114,901.86
(b) Deferred Tax Liabilities (net) 8,489.67 7,537.20
Total 65,745.98 122,439.05
(3) Current liabilities
(a) Short-term Borrowings 7 151,188.30 149,557.11
(b) Trade Payables 8 54,614.67 33,875.61

- Due to Others = -
(c) Other Current Liabilities 9 2,931.29 4,592.52
(d) Short-term Provisions ~ =
Total 208,734.26 188,025.24
Total Equity and Liabilities 411,765.62 370,697.71
II. ASSETS
{1} Non-current assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets

(i) Property, Plant and Equipment 11 154,124.15, 147,493.98
(b) Deferred Tax Assets (net) '
(c) Long term Loans and Advances 12 1,381.54 1,572.88
(d ) Other Non Current Investment 10 2,056.25 1,545.00
(e) Other Non Current Assets 13 1,547.10 189.85
Total 159,109.04 150,801.70
{2} Current assets
(a) Inventories 14 166,045.96 153,835.73
(b) Trade Receivables 15 85,386.83 48,673.25
(c) Cash and cash equivalents 16 771.24 263.10
(d) Short-term Loans and Advances i B 452.56 1512393
(e) Other Current Assets
Total 252,656.59 219,896.00
Total Assets 411,765.62 370,697.71

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

As per our report of even date

For and on behalf of the Board of
Kanishk Aluminium India Pvt Ltd

For Mahaveer Gandhi And Associates

4 %d Accountants

F fi(anishk Aluminium Indigvt.Ltd.

For Kanishk Aluminium indiaé}\t.!..idt

Ny

Director
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Kanishk Aluminium India Private Limited
CIN: U27109RJ2018PTC063198
P. No. E 849, Fourth Phase, RIICO Boranada, Jodhpur-342001

Statement of Profit and loss for the year ended 31 March 2024
[In Thousand Rs}

Particulars Note 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Revenue from Operations 1B 593,045.83 591,595.96
Other Income 19 2,342.71 5,22B.69
Total Income 595,388.54 596,824.65
Expenses
Cost of Material Consumed 20 515,678.04 543,025.23
Purchases of Stock in Trade - -
Change in Inventories of work in progress and finished goods 21 (18,041.41) (53,238.05)
Employee Benefit Expenses 22 12,767.42 11,562.27
Finance Costs 23 20,964.57 17,733.41
Depreciation and Amartization Expenses 24 6,434.74 4966.26
Other Expenses 25 39,280.73 53,890.29
Total expenses 577,084.10 577,939.42
Profit/{Loss) before Exceptional and Extraordinary item and Tax 18,304.44 18,885.24
Exceptional Item - -
Profit/(Loss) before Extraordinary Item and Tax 18,304.44 18,885.24
Extraordinary Item - -
Profit/(Loss) before Tax 18,304.44 18,885.24
Tax Expenses 26 300.00 -
Deferred Tax 952.47 2,097.23
Profit/{Loss) after Tax 17,051.97 16,788.01
Earnings Per Share (Face Value per Share Rs. each)

-Basic (In Rs) 27 =8 -

-Diluted (In Rs) 27 < .

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

As per our report of even date

'__,‘Em,.Mahaveer Gandhi And Associates For and on behalf of the Board of
# ¢ Ehartef d Accountants Kanishk Aluminium India Pvt Ltd
X\{?(; o 'T"irmajle‘grl tionNo. yy 6 FSb L S o
{' i\? ( F R N C‘_ "':\ For Kanishk Aluminium India Pvt.Ltd. For Kanishk Aluminium Indla PykLtd, _
120705 :
A ELTe
o Director irector
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Kanishk Aluminium India Private Limited
CIN: UZ7109RJ2018PTC063198
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements

1 COMPANY INFORMATION
Kanishk Aluminium India Private Limited ("The Company") is an unlisted private limited company, incorporated under
provisions of the Companies Act’ 2013, in the year 2018, with a Corporate Inentity Number U27109R]2018PTC063198.
The Company engaged in manufacturing of Aluminium Profiles and other articles through Extrusion pracess.

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a  Basis of Preparation
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in
India (‘Indian GAAP') to comply with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013,
as applicable. The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention on accrual basis, except
for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair value.

b Use of estimates
The preparation of financial statements requires the management of the Company to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported balances of assets and liabilities and disclosures relating to the contingent liabilities as at the
date of the financial statements and reported amounts of income and expense during the year. Examples of such
estimates include provisions for doubtful receivables, provision for income taxes, the useful lives of depreciable
Property, Plant and Equipment and provision for impairment. Future results could differ due to changes in these
estimates and the difference between the actual result and the estimates are recognised in the period in which the

¢ Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, Plant and Eguipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation / amortisation. Costs include all
expenses incurred to bring the asset to its present location and condition.

d Depreciation / amortisation
In respect of Property, Plant and Equipment (other than freehold land and capital work-in-progress) acquired during
the year, depreciation/amortisation is charged on a straight line basis so as to write-off the cost of the assets over the
useful lives.

Type of Period
Buildings 30 Years
Plant and Equipment 25 Years
Furniture and Fixtures 10 Years
Vehicles 8 Years
Office equipment 6 Years
Computers 3 Years

Kanist Auminiam Iqa PRI f For Kanshk Ao Tndi YL

Director




Impairment

At each balance sheet date, the management reviews the carrying amounts of its assets included in each cash generating
unit to determine whether there is any indication that those assets were impaired. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of impairment. Recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s net selling price and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows expected
from the continuing use of the asset and from its disposal are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects the current market assessments of time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. Reversal of
impairment loss is recognised as income in the statement of profit and loss.

Investments

Long-term investments and current maturities of long-term investments are stated at cost, less provision for other than
temporary diminution in value. Current investments, except for current maturities of long-term investments,
comprising investments in mutual funds, government securities and bonds are stated at the lower of cost and fair value.

Revenue recognition
Expenses and Income considered payable and receivable respectively are accounted for on accrual basis.

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the
revenue can be reliably measured.

Taxation

Current income tax expense comprises taxes on income from operations in India and in foreign jurisdictions. Income
taxpayable in India is determined in accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961. Tax expense relating
to foreign operations is determined in accordance with tax laws applicable in countries where such operations are

Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws in India, which gives rise to future economic
benefits in the form of adjustment of future income tax liability, is considered as an asset if there is convincing evidence
that the Company will pay normal income tax after the tax holiday period. Accordingly, MAT is recognised as an asset in
the balance sheet when the asset can be measured reliably and it is probable that the future economic benefit
associated with it will fructify.

Deferred tax expense or benefit is recognised on timing differences being the difference between taxable income and
accounting income that originate in one period and is likely to reverse in one or more subsequent periods. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are measured using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the balance sheet date.

Advance taxes and provisions for current income taxes are presented in the balance sheet after off-setting advance tax
paid and income tax provision arising in the same tax jurisdiction for relevant tax paying units and where the Company
is able to and intends to settle the asset and liability on a net basis.

The Company offsets deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities if it has a legally enforceable right and these relate
to taxes on income levied by the same governing taxation laws.

Foreign currency transactions

Income and expense in foreign currencies are converted at exchange rates prevailing on the date of the transaction.
Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities other than net investments in non-integral foreign operations are
translated at the exchange rate prevailing on the balance sheet date and exchange gains and losses are recognised in the
statement of profit and loss. Exchange difference arising on a monetary item that, in substance, forms part of an
enterprise’s net investments in a non-integral foreign operation are accumulated in a foreign currency translation

r Kanishk Aluminium India PLLY.  For Kanishk Alominion e i
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i Inventories
Inventories are valued at Lower of Cost at FIFO or NRV.

k Provisions, Contingent liabilities and Contingent assets
A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past event and it is probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which reliable estimate can be made.
Provisions (excluding retirement benefits and compensated absences) are not discounted to its present value and are
determined based on best estimate required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date. These are reviewed at
each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates, Contingent liabilities are not recognised in
the financial statements. A contingent asset is neither recognised nor disclosed in the financial statements.

1  Cash and cash equivalents
The Company considers all highly liquid financial instruments, which are readily convertible into known amount of cash
that are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value and having original maturities of three months or less from
the date of purchase, to be cash equivalents.

As per our report of even date

For Mahaveer Gandhi And Associates For and on behalf of the Board of
Chartered Accountants Kanishk Aluminium India Pvt Ltd
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Impairment

At each balance sheet date, the management reviews the carrying amounts of its assets included in each cash generating
unit to determine whether there is any indication that those assets were impaired. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of impairment. Recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s net selling price and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows expected
from the continuing use of the asset and from its disposal are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects the current market assessments of time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. Reversal of
impairment loss is recognised as income in the statement of profit and loss.

Investments

Long-term investments and current maturities of long-term investments are stated at cost, less provision for other than
temporary diminution in value. Current investments, except for current maturities of long-term investments,
comprising investments in mutual funds, government securities and bonds are stated at the lower of cost and fair value.

Revenue recognition
Expenses and Income considered payable and receivable respectively are accounted for on accrual basis.

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the
revenue can be reliably measured.

Taxation

Current income tax expense comprises taxes on income from operations in India and in foreign jurisdictions. Income
taxpayable in India is determined in accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961. Tax expense relating
to foreign operations is determined in accordance with tax laws applicable in countries where such operations are

Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws in India, which gives rise to future economic
benefits in the form of adjustment of future income tax liability, is considered as an asset if there is convincing evidence
that the Company will pay normal income tax after the tax holiday period. Accordingly, MAT is recognised as an asset in
the balance sheet when the asset can be measured reliably and it is probable that the future economic henefit
associated with it will fructify.

Deferred tax expense or benefit is recognised on timing differences being the difference between taxable income and
accounting income that originate in one period and is likely to reverse in one or more subsequent periods. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are measured using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the balance sheet date.

Advance taxes and provisions for current income taxes are presented in the balance sheet after off-setting advance tax
paid and income tax provision arising in the same tax jurisdiction for relevant tax paying units and where the Company
is able to and intends to settle the asset and liability on a net basis.

The Company offsets deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities if it has a legally enforceable right and these relate
to taxes on income levied by the same governing taxation laws.

Foreign currency transactions

Income and expense in foreign currencies are converted at exchange rates prevailing on the date of the transaction.
Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities other than net investments in non-integral foreign operations are
translated at the exchange rate prevailing on the balance sheet date and exchange gains and losses are recognised in the
statement of profit and loss. Exchange difference arising on a monetary item that, in substance, forms part of an
enterprise’s net investments in a non-integral foreign operation are accumulated in a foreign currency translation

r i(;anish_k Aluminium India P;t.Llll.

For Kanishk Aluminium India 'i’itjm.
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Kanishk Aluminium India Private Limited

CIN: UZ7109RJ2018PTC063198
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements

(@)

Share Capital {In Thousand Rs]
Particulars 31 March 202431 March 2023
Authorised Share Capital

Equity Shares, Rs. 10 par value, (Previous Year - 2023-24) Equity Shares 109,000 49,000
Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid up Share Capital

Equity Shares, Rs. 10 par value (Previous Year - 2023-24) Equity Shares paid up 59,000 49,000
Total 59,000 49,000
Reconciliation of number of shares

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Equity Shares No. of shares (in Rs) No. of shares (in Rs)
Opening Balance 4,900,000 49,000 4,900,000 49,000
Issued during the year 1,000,000 10,000 " -
Deletion 7 % = =
Closing balance 5,900,000 59,000 4,900,000 49,000

(ii) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares
Equity Shares: The Company has one class of equity shares. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per share held. The
dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General
Meeting, except in case of interim dividend. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the
remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.

(iii) Details of Shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the company

(iv)

]

Equity Shares 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Name of Shareholder No. of shares n % No of shares In %
Khushboo Agarwal 1000000 16.95 1000000 20.41
Parmanand Agarwal 4900000 #43.05 3900000 79.59
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Class No. of shares l Class

No. of shares |

(i) Aggregate number and class of shares allotted as fully
(ii) Aggregate number and class of shares allotted as fully
(iii) Aggregate number and class of shares bought back

paid up pursuant to contract(s) without payment being received in cz
paid up by way of bonus shares

Shares held by Promoters at the end of the year 31 March 2024

% of total A
Name of Promoter Class of Shares| No. of Shares sharan during the
Parmanand Agarwal Equity Share 4900000 83.05 3.46
Shares held by Promoters at the end of the year 31 March 2023

% of total s 8
Name of Promoter Class of Shares| No, of Shares Ak during the
I'rmanand Agarwal Equity Share 3900000 17959 0
[hushhon Agarwal Equity Share 1000000 2041 0
Equity shares movement during 5 vears preceding 31 March 2024
Particulars Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5

_|Edtiify sHareg extinguished on buy-back -

Equity shares issued as bonus -

N,

Director
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4 Reserves and Surplus

{In Thousand Rs)

Particulars 31 March 202431 March 2023
Surplus:

Opening Balanance 11,233.42 (6,606.22)
Add: Profit for the year 17,051.96 16,788.01
Add: Surplus - 1,051.63
Less: Deletion sduring the year - -
Closing Balance (a) 28,285.38 11,233.42
Securities Premium:

Balance at the beginning of the year - -
during the year 50,000.00 -
Net Balance (b) 50,000.00 -
Total (a + b) 78,285.38 11,233.42

5 Long term borrowings

(In Thousand Rs)

[Particulars 31 March 2024[31 March 2023
Term Loan From AU 'Secured Loan’ - 31,712.34
Covid Term Loan 'Secured Loan’ - 795.89
Covid Term Loan 2.0 'Secured Loan’ 10,198.88 13,899.83
Daimler Financial ‘Secured Loan’ 6,389.20 -
Unsecured Loan From Director "Unsecured Loar 40,668.23 68,493.80
Total 57,256.30 114,901.86
Particulars of Long term Borrowings

Particulars Name of lender Sanction Qutstanding Tenure

Term Loan From AU Au Small Finance Bank 62223.00 0.00 46 Months
Covid Term Loan Au Small Finance Bank 18961.00 0.00 18 Months
Covid Term Loan 2.0 Au Small Finance Bank 16540.00 15329.52 49 Months
Daimler Financials Daimler Financial (Mercedez) 7280.00 7158.10 48 Months
USL From Director Parmanand Agarwal 0.00 40668.23 -

Director
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Term Loan From AU (AU Small Finance Bank) was taken during FY 2020-21 and carries interest @ 10.00% to
p.a.The loan is repayable in 58 monthly installment of Rs. 13.27 Lacs each along with interest, from the date of
loan.The loan is secured by hypothecation of P & M, Land and Building in the name of Company and it's
directors. Further the loan has been guranteed by the personal gurantee of Mr. Parmanand Agarwal, Mrs.
Khushboo Agarwal, Mrs. madhu Agarwal w/o Mr. Parmanand Agarwal and Mr. Ashish Agarwal S/o Mr.
Parmanand Agarwal. The loan is also secured by Corporate Guarantee of M/s P N Agarwal & Co Prop. Mr
Parmanand Agarwal and M/s Kanishk Metals (partnership firm of Mr. Parmanad Agarwal and His Family
members).

COVID Term Loan From Bank (AU Small Finance Bank) was taken during FY 2020-21 and carries interest @
10.25% to p.a.The loan is repayable in 30 monthly installment of Rs. 7.12 Lacs each along with interest, from the
date of loan.The loan is secured by hypothecation of P & M, Land and Building in the name of Company and it"s
directors. Further the loan has been guranteed by the personal gurantee of Mr. Parmanand Agarwal, Mrs.
Khushboo Agarwal, Mrs. madhu Agarwal w/o Mr. Parmanand Agarwal and Mr. Ashish Agarwal S/o Mr.
Parmanand Agarwal. The loan is also secured by Corporate Guarantee of M/s P N Agarwal & Co Prop. Mr
Parmanand Agarwal and M/s Kanishk Metals (partnership firm of Mr. Parmanad Agarwal and His Family
members).

COVID Term Loan 2.0 From Bank (AU Small Finance Bank) was taken during FY 2020-21 and carries interest
@ 10.25% to p.a.The loan is repayable in 72 monthly installment of Rs. 5.28 Lacs each along with interest, from
the date of loan.The loan is secured by hypothecation of P & M, Land and Building in the name of Company and
it"s directors. Further the loan has been guranteed by the personal gurantee of Mr. Parmanand Agarwal, Mrs.
Khushboo Agarwal, Mrs. Madhu Agarwal w/o Mr. Parmanand Agarwal and Mr. Ashish Agarwal S/io Mr.
Parmanand Agarwal. The loan is also secured by Corporate Guarantee of M/s P N Agarwal & Co Prop. Mr
Parmanand Agarwal and M/s Kanishk Metals (partnership firm of Mr. Parmanad Agarwal and His Family
members).

Loan From Daimler Financial (NBFC) was taken during FY 2023-24 and carries interest @ 8.5529% to p.a.The
iv  loan is repayable in 48 monthly installment of Rs. 1.13 Lacs each along with interest, from the date of loan.The
loan is secured by hypothecation of Mercedez E220d in the name of Company.

Unsecured Loan From Director was taken during FY 2023-24 for the purpose of clearing Term Loan From AU

V' Bank and Repayable on Demand.

6 Deferred tax liabilities Net . {In Thousand Rs)
Particulars 31 March 2024|31 March 2023
Deferred Tax Liabilities 8,489.67 7.537.20
Total 8,489.67 7,537.20

7 Short term borrowings (In Thousand Rs)
Particulars 31 March 2024|31 March 2023

Term Loan From AU '‘Secured - 15,923.57
Covid Term Loan ' Secured - 8,554.40
Covid Term Loan 2.0 ‘Secured Loan' 5,130.65 2,640.18
Daimler Financial 'Secured 768.90 -
Working Capital Loan From Bank 'Secured Loan' 143,661.96 122,438.96
Credit Card Dues 1,626.79 -

Total 151,188.30 149,557.11
Particulars Name of lender Sanction Outstanding Tenure
Term Loan From AU Au Small Finance Bank 62,223.00 - 46 Months
Covid Term Loan Au Small Finance Bank 18,961.00 - 18 Months
Covid Term Loan 2.0 Au Small Finance Bank 16,540.00 15,329.52 49 Months
Daimler Financials Daimler Financial (Mercedez) 7,280.00 7,158.10 48 Months
W/C Loan From Bank Au Small Finance Bank 162,000.00 143,661.96
Credit Card 2000.00 1626.79
et e e 5 tioe Ay m— M T s = — e —
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8 Trade payables (In Thousand Rs)
Particulars 31 March 202431 March 2023
Due to Micro and Small Enterprises 53,728.12 27,905.03
Due to other than Micro and Small Enterprises 886.55 5,970.58
Total 54,614.67 33,875.61

8.1 Trade Payable ageing schedule as at 31 March 2024 {In Thousand Rs)
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Less than 1 More than 3 Total
1-2 years 2-3 years
year _years

MSME - - -
Others - -
Disputed dues- MSME -
Disputed dues- Others -
Sub total . - , =
MSME - Undue 53,72812
Others - Undue B86.55
Total 54,614.67

8.2

8.2

Trade Payable ageing schedule as at 31 March 2023 {In Thousand Rs)
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment '
Less than 1 More than 3 Total
1-2 years 2-3 years
year years

MSME - - - -
Others - T - -
Disputed dues- MSME = 3 - -
Disputed dues- Others - - - -
Sub total - - S
MSME - Undue 27,905.03
Others - Undue 5,970.58
Total 33,875.61
Micro and Small Enterprise (In Rs)
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Principal Interest Principal Interest
Amount Due to Supplier 54,614.67 33,875.61

Principal amount paid beyond appointed date

Interest due and payable for the year

Interest accrued and remaining unpaid

Interest paid other than under Section 16 of MSMED Act
to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, beyond
the appointed day during the year.

Interest paid under Section 16 of MSMED Act to
suppliers registered under the MSMED Act beyond the
appointed day during the year.

Further interest remaining due and payable for earlier
years.

India Ph-rt.L‘t_d—._

‘For Kanishi.ﬁlluﬁiﬁ.iuﬁ; Indua P;t&jt-d_
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9 Other current liabilities

(In Thousand Rs)

Particulars 31 March 2024|31 March 2023
TDS & TCS Payable 671.07 257.05
ESIC & PF Payable 24.92 19.51
Audit Fee Payable 90.00 75.00
Provision for Gratuity 807.31 0.00
GST payable (Net) 483.16 0.00
Advance from Debtors 854.84 4240.95
Total 2931.29 4592.52
10 Non Current Invesiments (In Thousand Rs)
Particulars 31 March 202431 March 2023
India First Life Insurance 2056.25 1545.00
Total 2056.25 1545.00

Details of Investments

[Name of Entity | No of

| Current Year [ No of Shares | Previous Year |

This is Traditional form of insurance policy no ULIP Plan.

Kanishk Aluminium India Pvt.Ltd.

o}"vo

Director irector

For Kanishk Aluminium India PYALYd.
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Kanishk Aluminium India Private Limited

CIN: U27109RJ2018PTC063198

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements

12 Long term loans and advances (In Th 1 Rs)
Particulars 31 March 2024|31 March 2023
Other Security Deposits 1381.54 1572.88
Total 1381.54 1572.88
Other Non Current Assets (In Thousand Rs)
Particulars 31 March 2024|31 March 2023
Preliminary Expenses 1547.10 189.85
Total 1547.10 189.85
Inventories (In Thousand Rs)
Particulars 31 March 2024|31 March 2023
Value of Finished Goods 144,123.95 126,082.54
Value of Consumables 5,015.93 3,047.99
Value of Raw Materials 16,906.08 2470519
Total 166,045.96 153,835.73

15

15.1

Trade receivables

(In Thousand Rs)

Particulars 31 March 2024|31 March 2023
Trade Receivable, considered Good 85,386.83 48,673.25
Total 85,386.83 48,673.25

Trade Receivables ageing schedule as at 31 March 2024

(In Thousand Rs)

Particulars

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Less than 6
months

6 months- 1
year

1-2 years

2-3 years

More than 3
years

Total

Undisputed Trade receivables-
considered good

Undisputed Trade Receivables-
considered doubtful

Disputed Trade Receivables
considered good

Disputed Trade Receivables
considered doubtful

Sub total

Undue - considered good

85,386.83

Total

85,386.83

"For Kanishk Aluminium India Pyt.Ltd,

Aot

Director

For Kanishk Aluminium India P
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Director



15.2 Trade Receivables ageing schedule as at 31 March 2023 (In Thousand Rs
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Lessthan6 | 6 months-1 y More than 3 Total
1-2 years 2-3 years
maonths year years
Undisputed Trade receivables- - < -
considered good
Undisputed Trade Receivables- - - - -
considered doubtful
Disputed Trade Receivables - - - - -
considered good
Disputed Trade Receivables - = = -
considered doubtful
Sub total - - - -
Undue - considered good 48,673.25
Total 48,673.25
16 Cash and cash equivalents (InTh d Rs)
Particulars 31 March 2024|31 March 2023
Balance at Bank of Baroda 235.45 14151
Cash in Hand 535.79 121.59
Total 771.24 263.10
17 Short term loans and advances (In Th d Rs)
Particulars 31 March 202431 March 2023
Advance to Creditors 271.59 856.68
GST Credit | - 15,820.25
TCS 103.52 135.21
T 77.45 9457
|Income Tax | - 217.23
Total 452.56 17,123.93
18 Revenue from operations (in Th d Rs)
Particulars 31 March 202431 March 2023
Sales Domestic 565,053.83 558,555.11
Sales Export 27,992.00 33,040.85
Total 593,045.83 591,595.96
19.1 Revenue from major Products (InRs)
Particulars 31 March 2024|31 March 2023

Revenue Product 1
Revenue Product 2
Revenue Product 3
Revenue Product 4
Revenue Product 5
Revenue Product 6
Revenue Product 7
Revenue Product 8
Revenue Product 9
Revenue Product 10

"

r Kanish_ﬁ Aluminium Ingdia Pvt.
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19 Other Income (In Thousand Rs)
Particulars 31 March 2024|31 March 2023
Interest Income 10.58 -
Other Non Operating Income 2,332.13 5,228.69
Total 2,342.71 5,228.69

20 Cost of Material Consumed {In Thousand Rs)

Particulars 31 March 202431 March 2023
Inventory at the beginning
Raw Material 24,705.19 22,184.55
Consumables 3,047.99 5,768.42
Total (a) 27,753.19 27,952.97
Add: Purchases
Raw Material 492,970.80 518,819.20
Consumables 16,876.06 24,006.24
Total (b) | 509,846.86 | 542,825.44
Less: Inventory at the end
Raw Material 16,906.08 24,705.19
Consumables 5,015.93 3,047.99
Total (c) | 21,922.01 27,753.19
Total 515,678.04 543,025.23
21 Change in Inventory (1n Th 1 Rs)

Particulars

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Inventory at the end of the year

Finisehd Goods 144,123.9 126,082.5

Inventory at the begining of the year

Finisehd Goods 126,082.5 72,8445

(Increase)/ decrease in inventories

Total (18,041.4) (53,238.1)
22 Employee benefit expenses [In Th d Rs)

Particulars 131 March 202431 March 2023

Salaries and wages 11,302.56 10,926.62

Labour Walfare Charges 144.07 245.15

ESIC & EPFO| 388.57 390.51

Staff Food Expenses 124.92 -

Gratuity for Employees 807.31

Total 12,767.42 11!562.2?
23 Finance costs {In Thousand Rs}

Particulars 31 March 2024| 31 March 2023

Interest Cost

Interest on Bank Loan 15,514.85 17,081.12

Other Borrowing Costs

Bank charges and Processing Fees 401.92 647.72

interest to others 160.13 4.57

Interest on Unsecured Loans 887.67 -

20,964.57 17,733.41

anishk Aluminium India Pyt.Ltd.

Director
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24

25

26

Depreciation and amortization expenses

{In Tk d Rs)

Particulars

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Depreciaion on assets 6,434.74 4,966.26
Total 6,434.74 4,966.26
Other expenses {In Thousand Rs)
Particulars 31 March 202431 March 2023
Conversion and Manufacturin Expenses 28,457.14 40,549.29
Office and Administrative Expenses 1,101.59 1,546.10
Selling & distribution Expenses 9,722.01 11,794.91
Total 39,280.73 53,890.29
Tax Exp (In Thousand Rs)
Particulars 31 March 202431 March 2023
Current Tax Pertaining to Current Year 300.00 -
Deferred Tax 952.47 2,097.22
Total 1,252.47 2,097.22
T i P p————p R -'-_- e — T v e e o7 e —
Kanishk Aluminium Ixdia Pvt.Ltd. Ltd.
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Kanishk Aluminiom India Private Limited
CIN: UZT109RIZ018PTCO63198
Notes forming part of the Financial Statemeuts

27 Earning per shiare
Particulars

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Profit le 1o equity (In Rs}
Weighted average number of Equity Shares
Earnings por share basic [Rs)

|Earnings per share diluted {Rs)

Face value per equity share (Rs}

17,051.97 16FAR0T
4,954,644.81 4,900,000.00
344 343

344 | 343

0000 1000

18 Conlingeot Lisbilites and Commitments

(i Rs]
31 March 2023

Particulars

31 March 2024

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as deht
- Income tax demands
- Indirect cax demands

[ Total

w

9 Micro and Small Enterprise

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Particulars Principal Interest

Principal Interest

Amount Due t Supoler

| Principal amount paid beyend appointad daie
\Interest due and payahie for the year

| Interest accrued and remaining unpatd

Interest paid ather than under Section 16 of MSMED Acr to suppliers registered
under the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during the year.

Interest paid under Section 16 of MSMED Act to suppliers registered under the
MSMED Act beyond the appointed day during the year.

Further interest remaining due and payable for earlier years.

31 Leases

Particulars

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Future minimum rental payahles under non-cancellable operating leass
- Not later than one year
« Later than ome year and not later than five years
= Later than fiwe years
- Other 1
= Other 2

18,000
Fz.000
&,008

18,000
72,000
24.000

31 Earnings in Foreign Currencies
Particulars

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Export of Goods caleulated on FORB basis

Royairy, k huow, professional and c ion fees
Interest and dividend

Other income, indicating the nature thereof

Other 1

Other 2

2778466 3218696

Total

27.784.66 32,186.96

31 Expendirure made in Foreign Currencies

Particulars

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Royalty

Know-how

Professional and Consultarion Fees
Interest

Dther Matters

Dthers 1

Dthers 2

Total

Director

T —
.

For Kanishk Aluminium India Pyi L




31 Value of Import on CIF basis =

Particulars L 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Raw Materials & B.506.979.81
Components and Spare Parts = 2
Capital goods = H
Others 1 ] =
Others 2 2 3
Total = 8,606,979.81

w

1 Value of {nmg and indigenous raw materiils, spare parts and cnimpone il consumsd
Particalars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Raw Materials
- Imported - -
- Indigeneous 16,906.08 24,705.19

Spare parts and components
= Imported - =
- Indigeneous = =

Consumahles
- imported = =
= Indigenaous 501593 3.047.99

Total 21,922 27,753

31 Un-hedped foTeign curroncy sxposure
The forelgn currency exposure of the compsny is not hedged. A details of Unhedged foreign cutrency exposure at the yearend is given below:

31 March 2024| 31 March 2023 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

i Ea neylFo) Amount in FC__ Amount In FC Amount in INR Amount in INR

Trade payables-Credic Balance - 5 - =
Trade Advances-Debit Balance - - = =
Trade Receivable-Debit Balance - - - .
Ay to Capital Credil Dehit Balance 3 z = =
Long term liabilities - b = "

Tatal ] 5 z -

31 Segment Reporting
Rusiness Segment

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
External _Interscgment Total External Intersegment | Total |
Revenue

Segment 1 = =
Segment 2

Total Revenue I - = - - - -
Result
Segment 1 = ~
Segment 2 - -

Total Segment Result - - -

Unzllocated corporate expenses - -

Profit before tax - -
Provision for current tax
Proviston for deferred tax 2 =
Prior period taxes - -
Profit after tax (before extraordinary items] - -
Profit from extraordinary items o =
Profit after tax (before exceprional items) -

exceptional item =
Prafit for the periad -

For Kanishk Aluminium India Pyi.Lid"
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Segment Assets & Liabilitics

{inis)

Particulars

ent Assets

~Scgment Liabilites

31 March 2024] 31 March 2023

March 2023 |

31 March 2024’ 31

Segment 1
Segment 2

Total

Dnallocahle rate assels/liabilines
Total mﬁ&llﬂn

Ghier Informativn

[in s}

Particulars

Capital Expenditure Deprectatinn

Non-cash expenses other than depreciation

1 March 2024

Segment 1
Segment 2

F1March 2023] 31 March 2024] 31 March 2023 ]
i T

31 March 2024 31 March Z023

Total

Aduitional Information by Geographics

(InRs)

[Particulars

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Revenue by Geographical Market
Inindia

| Qutside Indiz

558,353.11
33.040.85

565,053.H3
27.9%2.00

Total

591,555.96

Carrying Amount of Segment Assets
In India
Outside India

593,045.83 |

Total

Addition ta Property, Plant and Equipment
In India
Qutside India

1306451

Total

Others
in India
Outside India

Total

Accounting Policies adapted for Segment

mmammmmlmnmr

Other segment fiootnoe

30 Relaved Party Disclosure

(i} List of Related Parties Relationship
Farmanand Agarwal Directar
Khushboo Agarwal Director
Ashish Agarwal Son of Director Mr. Parmanand Agarwal
‘Madhu Agarwal Wife of Director Mr. Parmanand Agarwsal
Om Prakash Agarwal Father of Divector Parmanand Agarwal )
Indramani Agarwal Mother of Director Mr. Parmanand Agatwal 4
M5 Kanishk Metals Firm in which Directoer is Partner
M/s PN Agarwal & Co, Firm in which Dirccter ins Proprietor
(i) Transacrion with Related Parties
5 Nao. Mame of Realted Party Nature of Transactions [Diuration of the Cont]Value of transacting Amount Paid as Advance
1 [M/s PN Agarwal & Co Purchase 330144 o0.oo
2 |M/s Kanishk Metals Purchase 2FTR010 .00
3 |M/sPN Agarwal & Co Sales 23522461 oo
4 |M/s Kanishk Mctals Sales B085H.27 Q.00
5  |M/sPN Agarwal & Co fob Wark Charges 1054.58 0.00
6 M3 Kanishk Metals Jakb Werk Charges 425,50 .00
7 |Mfs PN Agarwal & Co Rent Paid THO0.0H o.on
#  |Khushboo Agarwal Remuneration 600,00 000}
9 |Ashish Agarwal Remunerakion 600,00 0.00
10 |Madhu Agarwal |nsecured Loan Repayment . 1587181 .08
11 |Khushboo Agarwal Unsecured Loan Repayment “'T:af:::;'::i?: 16028.30 0.00
12 |Om Prakash Agarwal Unseeured Loan Repayment NG hassd 15405.69] 0.00
13 |Om Prakash Agarwal huf Unsecured Loan Repayment e i 4522.00 0.00
14 [IndraMani Agarwal Unsecured Loan Repayment 12811.55] 000
15 |Ashish Agarwal hul ! Loan Repayment 4736.00 0.00
16 |Ashish Agarwal Credit Card Expenses paid on behalf of company 35255 0.00|
17 |Parmanand Agarwal Unsecured Loan Repayment 17561.77 0.00]
18 |Om Prakash Agarwal Uinsecured Loan Receiwed G405 T8 000
19 1 Agarwal 1 d Loan Received 6405 7E| .09
‘20 |Ashish Agarwal Credit Card Reimbursement of Expenses paid 352.55 0,00
21 |Parmanand Agarwal Unsecured Loan Received 46300.00| .00

L ishk Aluminium India Pvt.Ltd.

Director

For Kanishk Aluminium India Pyt,

.



(i) Related Party Transactions
Particulars

Relationship 31 March 20247 31 March 2023
[iil} Related Balances =

Particulars [ Relationship 31March 2024] 31 March 2023
M/s PN Agarwal & Co Sundry Debtors Firm in which Directar ins Proprictor 4686461 20000.00
M5 PN Agarwal & Co [Rent) Advance rent Firm in which Divector ins Proprietor o.00 135.00
M/s Kanishk Metals Sundry Debtors Firm in which Director is Partner 1213196 10000.00
Khushboa Agarwal Ungecured Loans Director o.00 1602830
Madhi Agarwal Unsecured Leans [Wife of Director Mr, Parmanand Agarwa 00 1587181
Oim Prakash Agarwal Unzecursd Loans Father of Dirsctor Parmanand Agarwal 0.00 8999.91
| (hm Prakash Agarwal huf Unsceured Loans Karta is Father of Director Parmanand Ay .00 4522.00
IndraMani Agarwal Unsecured Loans Mother of Ddrector Mr. Parmanand Agary (X)) 640578
Ashish Agarwal hil Unsecured Loans Harta is 500 of Director Parmanand Agar| o.on 4736.00
Parmanand Agarwal Unsecured Loans Director 40668.23 11930.00

32 pisclosure required under sectinn 1H6{4) of the © Act 2013 .
Name of the _Details of Loan | 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Movement of loan are as follows:
Particulars

| 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Opening Ralanco t
| Add: Loans given during the year
{Less): Hecerved back during the year
Closing Balanee J

11 Loans and Advances given to Relaied Parties
1 31 March 224 31 Mareh
Vame ot Bavorwes . v %ofTotal | Amountoutstanding
Promolers = 0.00%: -
Directurs - 0.00% -
KMPs = 0.00%|
Related Parties - 0004
Others 1 = 00415 N
Others 2 - MY
Total 1 - 0.00%s =
No Loan or Advances has been given to related partles,
32 Hatio Analynis

Particulars Numerator) ator 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 C in % Reasons For Variations
1 Current #atio Current Axsets "|current Liabilines 121 147 003
2. Dbt - Equity Hatio LT Dot + 5T Bebe Share Holder Equity| 152 439 -0L65] Due te increse (n Capital
3. Return on Equirty [EHIT+Depné Amortisation Avg, Share helders e 07 .33 0,47 | Due to increase in capital ot the end of th year
4, Inventory Turnover Ratio Turnover Avg: Inventory 371 4.65 -0.20{ Due to change business cyche
5. Trade Recewvables turnover Ratio Met Credit Sales Avg,. Trade Receivab! B85 17.69] . -i1.50Due to change business cyde
f. Trade payables turnover ratio Met Credit Purchasoes Avg Trade payable 11.66] 2111 i ~.45| Due to change busimess cyde
7. Net Capital Turnover Ratio Tatal Sales Avg Working Capital 15.65 17.85] -0,12} Due to increase in capital a1 the end of the year
8. Net profit ratio Net Profit Net Sales 003 no3 am
9. fieturn on Capital employed EBIT+Depni Amortisation Capital Employed 011 Bl -l

34 Disclosure where comy has given foan of invested £o other person OF entity to lend oy invest 1o another person oF entiy
3 PP Nature of {in Rs)_l

Na Intermediatory r i
me of Address Gow Tra i

34 Disclosure where compauny has recetved fund fron sther person ar esiliy to lonid or invest Int sthier person or sntity
: Nature of

of Fun Address 1) &

Name ding Party Government Relationship | Tra a ate (In Rs)

e Romium Tndia PYLLE Frama s s 7.3
e o

o>

Director ector




34 Undisclosed Income

34 (SR Expenditure

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Amaount required to be spent by the company during the year = 5

Amaunt of expenditure imenrmed =
Shortfall at the end of the year -
Total of previous years shortfall =
Movement in the provision -

Reason for shortfall

Nature of CSR activities

Details of related party transactions

41 March 2024 31 March 2023

Prufit or loss from Crypto Currency transaction =
Amuuant of Crypto Currency held as at Balance Sheet date -

Deposits or Advances received for trading or investing in Crypto Currency -

Others 1 -

Others 2 5
A% Other e A% per the G Act, 2013

1. There are no lmmaovable properties with the Company.

2. There are neither any projects under Capital work-in-progress nor aay assetunder devel for FY 2023-24.

3. The Company does not held any Benami Property.

4. The Company does not have borrowing from bank or financial institution

5. The Company has not been declared as willlful defaulter by any bank or limsncial institution or any other lender.

6. The Company does not have any transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of the Companies AcL 1956
7.There are no charges or satisfaction yet to be regi d with Hegl of T beyond the statutory parind.

& The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause {87) of section 2 of the Act read with Companies {Restriction on number of Layers) Rubes,
9, The provisions: of section 230 to 237 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable tn the Company.

141 [A) The Company has neither advanced or lozned or invested funds (either borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) to any other

11 Ne Instance of any transactions not being recorded in the hooks of acoounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the Tax assessments
12. The Company bas not traded or invested in Crypto Currency or Virtual Curvency durisg the financial year.

134 Thee Conpmany iy ot boen senoctioned workieg came v st Trrom bk
14 There s wo e@rvngs and cxpenditurs in foreign our
15. The closing balances of current & non-current assets and ‘u,htlmu are subjedt o verification, confirmation and reconcilia tion.

16. The Company is not covered under section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, hence the provision lowsrnds corporate social responsibshity is not appleiable to the Company.
17. Previous year's figures have been regrouped, recast, and rearranged whereeve) necessary, to make them cumparable with those of the carrent year's presentation.

23 Figures have heen rounded off to the nearest thousand,

A4 Snhsequent Events X

p:.::suc:?uiimm o\b3s sLC CRan ) Fur and on hehalf of the Boird of

ntants Kanishb Aduminivo liia Pyt Lid

IO LMpgy)
j .th"’\/‘
Mo AWM LoRKAMP QY vy, Place:

'Ia N Py R Director _ il
U=[09) 202\

anishk Aluminium India Pvt.Ltd,

For Kanjshl Aluminium Tndjg ;H.‘Ej_

7

Director



1 Share capital

{In Thousand Rs)

Particulars

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Issued Equity Share Capital
- Share Capital

59,000

49,000

Total

59,000.00

49,000.00

3

Cash and cash equivalents

(Im Thousand Rs)

Particulars

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Balances with banks in current accounts

- Cash 535.79 121.59
- Balance with Bank 235.45 141.51
Total 771.24 263.10

For Mahaveer Gandhi And Associates
Chartered Accountants
urm's Registration No. 91035 b C

For and on behalf of the Board of
Kanishk Aluminium Iindia Pvt Ltd

\\“C‘Oum,\iﬁ“
SN 2MeFNeLo R RMP R RUY)
Place: 34 AN RV

Date: olloﬁlh.w

N\ A i Rominum g PYLLRE. For Kanishk Aluminium ;;Atra*
e 7 .:ﬂc :
AR T/ Director Director
R vraons ' :

Place: Ju d kf\p
Date: o:\ °"J|2.v'}.\1



Kanichlt Aluminium India Private Limited

CiN: UZT109R[2018PTCU63198

. No, E 849, Fourth Phase, RIICO Boranada, Jodhpur-342046G1
Cash Flow Statement fot the year ended on 315t March 2024

PARTICULARS | 31st March 2024 3ist March 2023
A. Cash Flow From Operating Activities
Net Profit before tax and extraordinary items(as per
Statement of Profit and Loss) 1530444 il
Adjustments for non Cash/ Non trade items;
Depreciation & Amortization Expenses 6,434.74 4,966.26
Finance Cost 20,964.57 17,733.41
Adjustments for unrealised foreign exchange Losses / (Gains) “227.33 -266.19
Other Inflows / (Outflows) of cash 50,000.00 1,051.63
Operating profits before Working Capital Changes 95,476.42 42,370.35
Adjusted For:
(Increase) / Decrease in trade receivables -46,657.43 -30,472.38
Increase / [Decrease) in trade payables 20,739.06 16,308.82
(Increase) / Decrease in inventories -12,210.23 -53,038.26
Increase / (Decrease) in other current liabilites -1,661.23 2,136.57
(Increase) / Decrease in Short Term Loans & Advances 16,898.70 3,405.59
Cash generated from Operations 82,585.29 -20,258.14
Net Cash flow fram Operating Activities(A) 82,585.29 -20,258.14
B. Cash Flow From Investing Activities
Purchase of tangible assats -13.064.91 -53,004.37
Proceeds from sales of tangible assets 0 26,669.34
Non Current Investments / [Purchased) sold -511.25 -511.25
Cash advances and loans made to other parties 191.34 0
Other Inflow / (Outflows) of cash -1.413.40 183.85
Net Cash used in Investing Activities(B) -14,798.22 -26,662.42
C Cash Flow From Financing Activities
Finance Cost -20,964.57 -17,733.41
Increase in / (Repayment) of Short term Borrowings 1,631.19 149,557.11
increase in / (Repayment) of Long term borrowings -57,645.55 -84,716.86
Increase / (Decrease) in share capital 10,000.00 0
Other Inflows / (Outflows) of cash -300 0
Net Cash used in Financing Activities(C) -67,278.93 47,106.84
Net Increase / (Decrease) in Cash & Cash .
o Equivalents{A+B+C}) ORLA 127
. Cash & Cash Equivalents ar Beginning of period 263.1 76.83
E. Cash & Cash Equivalents ar End of period 771.24 2631
G. Net Increase / (Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivaients{F-E) 508.14 186.27

As per our report of even date
For Mahaveer Gandhi And Associates

=

For and on hehalf of the Board of
Kanishk Aluminium India Pyt Ltd

m rgh Pytled.

For Kanishk Aluminium India Pyt,

) e 3MoLe i
ER0N Q‘ﬁ'\'\ a2e [} Kem P L%\S I Dlrel:tll'lf irector
Jeoubun Place: T 4k P\Mr\

[ate:

8243 )22y 0209|202y



MAHAVEER GANDHI & ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants

To the Members of
KANISHK ALUMINIUM INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

We have audited the financial statements of KANISHK ALUMINIUM INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
(“the Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31" March 2023, and the statement of
Profit and Loss and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required
and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31* March, 2023 its profit/loss and its cash flows
for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have
determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our
report.

Reporting of Key Audit Matters as per SA 701 is not applicable to the company as it is an unlisted
company.

Information other than the financial statements and auditors’ report thereon

The Company's board of directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Board's Report including Annexures to
Board's Report but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

H.O.: 6/23, Near Harsidhi Tent House, Kashipuri, Bhilwara-311001, Rajasthan
Email id: mgandhi10101@yahoo.com, +91-94141-14797, +91-96724-18766




MAHAVEER GANDHI & ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information; we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone Financial
Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that
give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’'s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

H.O.: 6/23, Near Harsidhi Tent House, Kashipuri, Bhilwara-311001, Rajasthan
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MAHAVEER GANDHI & ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies
Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

As required by the Companies (Auditor’'s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we
give in the 'Annexure A’, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the
Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

H.O.: 6/23, Near Harsidhi Tent House, Kashipuri, Bhilwara-311001, Rajasthan
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Chartered Accountants

d)

e)

9)

h)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31° March, 2023
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March,
2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in ‘Annexure B'.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s report in accordance with the
requirements of Sec 197(16) of the Act as amended, we report that Section 197 is not applicable
to a private company. Hence reporting as per Section 197(16) is not required.
With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:
i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position.
i. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses
iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.
iv.

a) The management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, no funds
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium
or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities (“"Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

b) The management has represented, that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, no funds
have been received by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding
Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

c) Based on such audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
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MAHAVEER GANDHI & ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants

representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b)
above, contain any material mis-statement.

v. No dividend have been declared or paid during the year by the company.

vi. Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining books of
account using accounting software which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log)
facility is applicable to the Company with effect from April 1, 2023, and accordingly,
reporting under Rule 11(g) of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not applicable
for the financial year ended March 31, 2023.

For MAHAVEER GANDHI AND ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 010756C

MAHAVEER Digitally signed
by MAHAVEER

GANDHI  GanpHi

CA Mahaveer Gandhi

Partner

M. No. 074020

UDIN: 23074020BGVWAM9471

Date: 01-09-2023
Place: Jodhpur
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MAHAVEER GANDHI & ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants

Annexure ‘A’

The Annexure referred to in paragraph 1 of Our Report on “Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements”

We report that:

a)

)

d)

e)

a)

(A) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars,
including quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment;
(B) The Company does not have any intangible assets. Accordingly, clause
3(i)(@)(B) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the
basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the Property,
Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the management at
reasonable intervals; no material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification;

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis
of our examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds of all the
immovable properties (other than properties where the company is the
lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee)
disclosed in the financial statementsare held in the name of the company

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis
of our examination of the records of the Company, the company has not
revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or
intangible assets during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under Clause
3(i)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis
of our examination of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings
have been initiated or are pending against the company for holding any
Benami Property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45
of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

As explained to us & on the basis of the records examined by us, in our opinion,
physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals by
the management. In our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such
verification by the management is appropriate. No discrepancy of 10% or more
in the aggregate for each class of inventory was noticed on physical verification
of stocks by the management as compared to book records.
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MAHAVEER GANDHI & ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the company has been sanctioned working
capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions
on the basis of security of current assets during any point of time of the year. The quarterly
returns or statements filed by the company with such banks or financial institutions are in
agreement with the books of account of the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the company, the company has not made investments in, nor provided any
guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or
unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties during the
year. Accordingly, provisions of clause 3(iii)(a), 3(iii)(b), 3(iii)(c), 3(iii)(d), 3(iii)(e) and 3(iii)(f) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records, in respect of loans, investments, guarantees, and security, provisions of section
185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 have been complied with except non charging of
interest on the loan.

The company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits
covered under sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the
Order is not applicable.

As per information & explanation given by the management, maintenance of cost records has
not been specified by the Central Government under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the
Companies Act.

a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the company, the company is regular in depositing undisputed
statutory dues including Goods and Services Tax, provident fund, employees' state insurance,
income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and
any other statutory dues to the appropriate authorities. According to the information and
explanation given to us there were no outstanding statutory dues as on 31st of March, 2023
for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the company, there is no statutory dues referred to in sub-
clause (a) that have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions,
previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.
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a)

b)

d)

e)

b)

b)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the company, the company has not defaulted in repayment of
loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the company, the company has not been declared a willful
defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender

According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the
Company has utilized the money obtained by way of term loans during the year for the
purposes for which they were obtained

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of
the balance sheet of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short term basis have
been used for long term purposes by the company.

The Company does not hold any investment in any subsidiary, associate or joint venture (as
defined under the Act) during the year ended March 31, 2023. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(e) is
not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management,
the company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its
subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(f) is not
applicable.

The company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not
applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the company has not made any preferential
allotment or private placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully, partially or
optionally convertible) during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not
applicable.

Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the
information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the company or any fraud on the
company has been noticed or reported during the course of audit.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12)
of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as
prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central
Government;

According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, no whistle-
blower complaints had been received by the company
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Xii.

Xiil.

Xiv.

b)

XV.

XVI.
a)

b)

0

d)

XVil.

XViii.

XiX.

The company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, clause 3(xii)(a), 3(xii)(b) and 3(xii)(c) of the
Order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions
with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of Companies Act, where
applicable and the details have been disclosed in the financial statements, as required by the
applicable accounting standards;

In our opinion and based on our examination, the company does not require to have an internal
audit system. Accordingly, clause 3(xiv)(a), of the Order is not applicable

Based on information and explanations provided to us, no internal audit had been conducted of
the company. Accordingly, clause 3(xiv)(a), of the Order is not applicable

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him and
hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company

In our Opinion and based on our examination, the Company is not required to be registered
under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934). Accordingly, clause
3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

In our Opinion and based on our examination, the Company has not conducted any Non-
Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities without a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR)
from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause
3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable.,

In our Opinion and based on our examination, the Company is not a Core Investment Company
(CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause
3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Group does not
have any CIC as part of the Group.

Based on our examination, the company has not incurred cash losses in the financial year and in
the immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial
ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial
liabilities, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention,
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which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report
that company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and
when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state
that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the company. We further state that our
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any
guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date, will get discharged by the company as and when they fall due.

xx.  Based on our examination, the provision of section 135 are not applicable on the company.
Accordingly, clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable.

xxi. ~ The company is not required to prepare Consolidate financial statement hence this clause is not
applicable.

For MAHAVEER GANDHI AND ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

FRN: 010756C

MAHAVEE Digitally signed
by MAHAVEER

R GANDHI ganphi

CA Mahaveer Gandhi

Partner

M. No. 074020

Date: 01-09-2023
Place: Jodhpur
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Annexure “B”
Report on Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Kanishk Aluminium India
Private Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’'s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets,
the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the
Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists,
and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that:

1. pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

2. provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and

3. provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For MAHAVEER GANDHI AND ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 010756C
MAHAVEE VR
R GANDHI' GanpHi
CA Mahaveer Gandhi
Partner

M. No. 074020

Date: 01-09-2023
Place: Jodhpur
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KANISHK ALUMINIUM INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

(2022-2023)

(Formerly known as Kanishk Aluminium Extrusions Private Limited)
Registered Office: Plot No. E-849 A, Fourth Phase, RICCO Boranada, Jodhpur-342001, Rajasthan

CIN: U27109RJ2018PTC063198

Email id: permanand1963@gmail.com, Telephone No.:

Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2023

0291-2980703

< in thousand

Particulars NN°;e As at 31st March 2023 | As at 31st March 2022
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholder's funds
Share capital 1 49,000.00 49,000.00
Reserves and surplus 2 11,233.42 (6,606.22)
Money received against share warrants
60,233.42 42,393.78
Share application money pending allotment
Non-current liabilities
Long-term borrowings 3 1,14,901.86 1,99,618.71
Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 4 7,537.20 5,439.97
Other long term liabilities
Long-term provisions
1,22,439.06 2,05,058.68
Current liabilities
Short-term borrowings 1,49,557.11
Trade payables 5
(A) Micro enterprises and small enterprises
(B) Others 33,875.61 17,566.79
Other current liabilities 6 4,592.52 2,455.95
Short-term provisions
1,88,025.24 20,022.74
TOTAL 3,70,697.72 2,67,475.20
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible assets 7
Property, Plant and Equipment 1,47,493.98 99,455.88
Intangible assets
Capital work-in-Progress 26,669.34
Intangible assets under development
Non-current investments 8 1,545.00 1,033.75
Deferred tax assets (net) 4
Long-term loans and advances 9
Other non-current assets 10 189.85 373.69
1,49,228.83 1,27,532.66
Current assets
Current investments
Inventories 11 1,53,835.73 1,00,797.46
Trade receivables 12 48,673.25 18,200.87
Cash and cash equivalents 13 263.10 76.84
Short-term loans and advances 9 1,572.88 604.04
Other current assets 14 17,123.93 20,263.33
2,21,468.89 1,39,942.54
TOTAL 3,70,697.72 2,67,475.20

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date
For MAHAVEER GANDHI AND ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
(FRN: 010756C)

MAHAVEER Digitally signed

y MAHAVEER

GANDHI  GanpHI
MAHAVEER GANDHI
PARTNER
Membership No.: 074020
Place: Jodhpur
Date: 01/09/2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

PARMANAN Digitally signed

by PARMANAND

D AGARWAL psarwaL

PERMANAND AGARWAL
Chairman and Director

DIN: 08295200

Behind Dhanwantri Hospital, 21 Kanti
Nagar, Pal Road, Jodhpur-342008, Rajasthan
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(2022-2023)

(Formerly known as Kanishk Aluminium Extrusions Private Limited)
Registered Office: Plot No. E-849 A, Fourth Phase, RICCO Boranada, Jodhpur-342001, Rajasthan
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Statement of Profit and loss for the year ended 31st March 2023

< in thousand

Particulars NN°;e 31st March 2023 | 31st March 2022
Revenue
Revenue from operations 15 5,91,595.96 3,47,916.95
Less: Excise duty
Net Sales 5,91,595.96 3,47,916.95
Other income 16 5,228.69 1,301.03
Total Income 5,96,824.65 3,49,217.98
Expenses
Cost of material Consumed 17 5,43,025.23 3,46,923.19
Purchase of stock-in-trade
Changes in inventories 19 (53,238.05) (60,262.40)
Employee benefit expenses 20 11,562.27 9,602.99
Finance costs 21 17,733.41 15,669.76
Depreciation and amortization expenses 22 4,966.26 4,229.52
Other expenses 23 53,890.29 28,237.22
Total expenses 5,77,939.41 3,44,400.29
aP;c:iflttal)o(efore exceptional, extraordinary and prior period items 18,885.24 4,817.69
Exceptional items
Profit before extraordinary and prior period items and tax 18,885.24 4,817.69
Extraordinary items
Prior period item
Profit before tax 18,885.24 4,817.69
Tax expenses
Current tax 24 400.00
Deferred tax 2,097.23 1,913.76
Excess/short provision relating earlier year tax
Profit(Loss) for the period 16,788.01 2,503.93
Earning per share-in =
Basic 25
Before extraordinary Items 3.43 0.51
After extraordinary Adjustment 3.43 0.51
Diluted
Before extraordinary Items
After extraordinary Adjustment

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date

For MAHAVEER GANDHI AND ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
(FRN: 010756C)

MAHAVEE Digitally signed
MAHAVEER

R GANDHI 2o

MAHAVEER GANDHI
PARTNER

Membership No.: 074020
Place: Jodhpur

Date: 01/09/2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

PARMANAN Digitally signed by
PARMANAND

D AGARWAL aGarRwAL

PERMANAND AGARWAL

Chairman and Director

DIN: 08295200

Behind Dhanwantri Hospital, 21 Kanti

Nagar, Pal Road, Jodhpur-342008, Rajasthan
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st March 2023

(2022-2023)

< in thousand

PARTICULARS 31st March 2023 31st March 2022
A. Cash Flow From Operating Activities
Net Profit before tax and extraordinary items(as per
Statement of Profit and Loss) 18,885.24 4,817.69
Adjustments for non Cash/ Non trade items:
Depreciation & Amortization Expenses 4,966.26 4,229.52
Finance Cost 17,733.41 15,669.76
AdJL_Jstments for unrealised foreign exchange Losses / (266.19)
(Gains)
Other Inflows / (Outflows) of cash 1,051.63
Operating profits before Working Capital Changes 42,370.35 24,716.97
Adjusted For:
(Increase) / Decrease in trade receivables (30,472.38) 43,311.71
Increase / (Decrease) in trade payables 16,308.82 16,200.82
(Increase) / Decrease in inventories (53,038.26) (67,477.41)
Increase / (Decrease) in other current liabilities 2,136.57 1,636.35
(Increase) / Decrease in Short Term Loans & Advances (968.83) (42.71)
(Increase) / Decrease in other current assets 3,405.59 10,547.22
Cash generated from Operations (20,258.14) 28,892.97
Net Cash flow from Operating Activities(A) (20,258.14) 28,892.97
B. Cash Flow From Investing Activities
Purchase of tangible assets (53,004.37) (23,251.92)
Proceeds from sales of tangible assets 26,669.34
Non Current Investments / (Purchased) sold (511.25) (511.25)
Other Inflow / (Outflows) of cash 183.85 186.85
Net Cash used in Investing Activities(B) (26,662.42) (23,576.32)
C. Cash Flow From Financing Activities
Finance Cost (17,733.41) (15,669.76)
Increase in / (Repayment) of Short term Borrowings 1,49,557.11
Increase in / (Repayment) of Long term borrowings (84,716.86) 10,590.51
Other Inflows / (Outflows) of cash (400.00)
Net Cash used in Financing Activities(C) 47,106.84 (5,479.25)
Net Increase / (Decrease) in Cash & Cash
D. Equivalents(A+B+C) 186.27 (162.60)
E. Cash & Cash Equivalents at Beginning of period 76.83 239.43
F. Cash & Cash Equivalents at End of period 263.10 76.83
Net Increase / (Decrease) in Cash & Cash
G. Equivalents(F-E) 186.27 (162.60)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date

For MAHAVEER GANDHI AND ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants
(FRN: 010756C)
MAHAVEE Digitally signed

AHAVEER

by M
R GANDHI canpHi

MAHAVEER GANDHI
PARTNER

Membership No.: 074020
Place: Jodhpur

Date: 01/09/2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

PARMANAN Digitally signed
by PARMANAND

D AGARWAL agarwAL

PERMANAND AGARWAL

Chairman and Director

DIN: 08295200

Behind Dhanwantri Hospital, 21 Kanti

Nagar, Pal Road, Jodhpur-342008, Rajasthan
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Notes to Financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2023
The previous year figures have been regrouped / reclassified, wherever necessary to confirm to the

current year presentation.

Note No. 1 Share Capital

(2022-2023)

< in thousand

Particulars As at 31st March As at 31st March
2023 2022

Authorised :

4900000 (31/03/2022:4900000) Equity shares of Rs. 10.00/- par value 49,000.00 49,000.00

Issued :

4900000 (31/03/2022:4900000) Equity shares of Rs. 10.00/- par value 49,000.00 49,000.00

Subscribed and paid-up :

4900000 (31/03/2022:4900000) Equity shares of Rs. 10.00/- par value 49,000.00 49,000.00

Total 49,000.00 49,000.00

Reconciliation of the Shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period

Equity shares

< in thousand

As at 31st March 2023 As at 31st March 2022
No. of Shares Amount No. of Shares Amount
At the beginning of the period 49,00,000 49,000.00 49,00,000 49,000.00
Issued during the Period
Redeemed or bought back during the period
Outstanding at end of the period 49,00,000 49,000.00 49,00,000 49,000.00

Right, Preferences and Restriction attached to shares

Equity shares

The company has only one class of Equity having a par value Rs. 10.00 per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote
per share held. The dividend proposed by the board of directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in ensuing
Annual General Meeting, except in case of interim dividend. In the event of liquidation, the Equity shareholders are eligible
to receive the remaining assets of the company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their

shareholding.

Details of shareholders and promoters holding more than 5% shares in the company and changes

As at 31st March 2023 As at 31st March 2022
Type of Share Name of Shareholders No. of % of No. of % of
Shares Holding Shares Holding
Equity [NV: 10.00 ] | KHUSHBOO AGARWAL 10,00,000 20.41 10,00,000 20.41
Equity [NV: 10.00 ] | PARMANAND AGARWAL 39,00,000 79.59 39,00,000 79.59
Total : 49,00,000 100.00 49,00,000 100.00

Note No. 2 Reserves and surplus

< in thousand

Particulars

As at 31st March 2023

As at 31st March 2022

Surplus

Opening Balance (6,606.22) (9,110.15)
Add: Profit for the year 16,788.01 2,503.93
Less : Deletion during the year

Closing Balance 10,181.79 (6,606.22)
Other reserves

Opening Balance

Add: Addition during the year 1,051.63

Less : Deletion during the year

Closing Balance 1,051.63

Balance carried to balance sheet 11,233.42 (6,606.22)
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Note No. 3 Long-term borrowings

(2022-2023)

< in thousand

As at 31st March 2023

As at 31st March 2022

. Non-Curre Current Non-Curre Current
Particulars o Total o Total
nt Maturities nt Maturities

Term Loan - From banks

Term Loan From Bank secured 31,712.34 15,923.57 47,635.91 58,724.28 58,724.28

Cash Credit From Bank 1,22,438.96| 1,22,438.96| 87,084.74 87,084.74
secured

- 1 0,

Term Loan - Covid 10% 580.71 580.71
secured

Term Loan - Covid 20% 795.89 8,554.40 9,350.30|  16,667.99 16,667.99
secured

Term Loan Covid - 2.0 13,899.83 2,640.18 16,540.00|  16,540.00 16,540.00
unsecured

46,408.06| 1,49,557.11 1,95,965.17| 1,79,597.72 1,79,597.72

Loans and advances from
related parties

Loan from Khushboo Agarwal 16,028.30 16,028.30|  10,145.30 10,145.30
unsecured

Loan from Indramani 6,405.78 6,405.78 4,075.78 4,075.78
unsecured

Loan from Om Prakash 8,999.91 8,999.91|  5799.91 5,799.91
Agarwal unsecured

Loan from Om Prakash
Agarwal HUF unsecured 4,522.00 4,522.00

Loan from Madhu Agarwal 15,871.81 15,871.81

unsecured

Loan from Parmanand Agarwal 11,930.00 11,930.00

unsecured

Loan From Ashish Agarwal and 4.736.00 4.736.00
Sons unsecured

68,493.80 68,493.80 20,020.99 20,020.99

The Above Amount Includes

Secured Borrowings 32,508.23| 1,46,916.93 1,79,425.17| 1,63,057.72 1,63,057.72

Unsecured Borrowings 82,393.62 2,640.18 85,033.80 36,560.99 36,560.99

Amount Disclosed Under the

Head "Short Term (1,49,557.11)| (1,49,557.11) 0 0
Borrowings"(Note No. )

Net Amount 1,14,901.86 0 1,14,901.86| 1,99,618.71 0 1,99,618.71

Note No. 4 Deferred Tax

< in thousand

Particulars

Deferred tax liability
Deferred tax liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities
Gross deferred tax liability

Net deferred tax liability

As at 31st March 2023 As at 31st March 2022
5,439.97 5,439.97
2,097.23
7,537.20 5,439.97
7,537.20 5,439.97

Note No. Short-term borrowings

< in thousand

Particulars As at 31st March 2023 As at 31st March 2022
Current maturities of long-term debt 1,49,557.11

1,49,557.11
Total 1,49,557.11

Note No. 5 Trade payables

< in thousand

Particulars

As at 31st March 2023

As at31st March 2022

(B) Others

Sundry Creditors - Expenses
Commission on Sale (Net)
Salaries, Wages and Labour

177.74
1,508.58

369.69
763.76
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(2022-2023)

Sundry Credtiros Others 32,189.30 16,433.34
33,875.62 17,566.79
Total 33,875.62 17,566.79

Note No. 6 Other current liabilities

< in thousand

Particulars

As at 31st March 2023

As at 31st March 2022

Others payables

TDS and TCS Payable 257.05 528.20
ESIC Payable 0.87 1.18
PF Payable 18.64 17.82
Audit Fees Payable 75.00 41.80
Debtors Having Credit Balance 4,240.95 1,866.94
4,592.52 2,455.95

Total 4,592.52 2,455.95
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(2022-2023)

Note No. 7 Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible assets as at 31st March 2023 < in thousand

Assets Gross Block Accumulated Depreciation/ Amortisation Net Block
L Addition on . . Deletion /
Life(in| Balance as at | QUCLEES | accountof | qti | O Mareh | Balanceasat | (I | adjustments | BSRUSE IR | B Warch | 31t Mareh
Years) st April 2022 year bus[ng§s year 2023 1st April 2022 year during the 2023 2023 2022
vaUISItIOn year

Tangible assets
Own Assets
AIR CONDITION 10.00 832.50 169.55 1,002.05 103.05 87.03 190.08 811.97 729.45
GENSET 250KVA 10.00 1,228.81 1,228.81 265.14 116.74 381.87 846.94 963.68
CAR SENTRO 6.00 524.08 524.08 246.66 82.98 329.64 194.43 277.41
'\B"EJTACJ’R CYCLE 10.00 68.29 68.29 19.09 6.49 25.58 42.72 49.20
Bolero Pick Up 6.00 785.03 785.03 221.31 124.30 345.61 439.42 563.72
COMPUTER 3.00 216.65 544.40 761.06 145.13 107.12 252.25 508.80 71.52
PRINTER 6.00 15.08 15.08 4.44 2.39 6.83 8.25 10.64
WEIGHT BRIDGE 15.00 854.40 854.40 126.28 54.11 180.39 674.01 728.12
,\PA;%NHT"\?E‘R'?Y 25.00 64,368.09 2,843.71 67,211.79 5,338.01 2,517.86 7,855.87 59,355.93 59,030.08
SOFTWARE 3.00 90.81 1,062.00 1,152.81 43.43 28.12 71.55 1,081.26 47.37
Lift 15.00 605.08 605.08 58.27 38.32 96.59 508.49 546.81
Fire Safety 15.00 153.21 32.23 185.44 6.22 9.89 16.11 169.32 146.99
Server 15.00 108.00 108.00 2.83 6.84 9.67 98.33 105.17
Plant and Machinery 2 | 25.00 26,671.44 26,671.44 335.99 335.99 26,335.45
BUILDING 30.00 35,988.43 717.48 36,705.91 2,394.75 1,158.85 3,553.59 33,152.32 33,593.68
Furniture 10.00 2,759.50 525.77 3,285.27 167.49 289.24 456.73 2,828.54 2,592.02
Land at Pali road 20,437.80 20,437.80 20,437.80
Total (A) 1,08,597.97 53,004.37 1,61,602.34 9,142.10 4,966.26 14,108.36|  1,47,493.98 99,455.88
P.Y Total 1,01,965.40 6,632.57 1,08,597.97 4,912.58 4,229.52 9,142.10 99,455.88 97,052.82
Capital work in
progress
Plant and Machinery 25.00 26,669.34 26,669.34 26,669.34
Total (B) 26,669.34 26,669.34 26,669.34
P.Y Total 10,050.00 16,619.34 26,669.34 26,669.34 10,050.00
f“l';)’e"" Year Total (A 1,35,267.32 53,004.37 26,669.34|  1,61,602.34 9,142.10 4,966.26 14,108.36|  1,47,493.98|  1,26,125.22
Previous Year Total 1,12,015.40 23,251.92 1,35,267.32 4,912.58 4,229.52 9,142.10| 1,26,125.22| 1,07,102.82

General Notes :
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1. No depreciation if remaining useful life is negative or zero.
Depreciation is calculated on pro-rata basis in case assets is purchased/sold during current F.Y.
If above assets is used for any time during the year for double shift, the depreciation will increase by 50% for that period and in case of the triple shift the depreciation shall

be calculated on the basis of 100% for that period.

3.
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Note No. 8 Non-current investments

(2022-2023)

< in thousand

Particulars

As at 31st March 2023

As at 31st March 2022

Trade Investment(Valued at cost unless stated
otherwise)

Other non-current investments (Unquoted)

In Others

Other investments long-term unquoted trade (Lower of cost

and Market value) 1,545.00 1,033.75
Gross Investment 1,545.00 1,033.75
Net Investment 1,545.00 1,033.75
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 1,545.00 1,033.75

Note No. 9 Loans and advances

< in thousand

Particulars As at 31st March 2023 As at 31st March 2022
Long-term Short-term Long-term Short-term
Security Deposit
Secured, considered good 1,572.88 604.04
1,572.88 604.04
Total 1,572.88 604.04

Note No. 10 Other non-current assets

< in thousand

Particulars As at 31st March 2023 As at 31st March 2022
Other Assets

Preliminary Expenses 189.85 373.69
Total 189.85 373.69

Note No. 11 Inventories

< in thousand

Particulars

As at 31st March 2023

As at 31st March 2022

(Valued at cost or NRV unless otherwise stated)

Finished Goods[stock in transit : Rs. 1,26,082.54()] 1,26,082.54 72,844 .49
Consumables[stock in transit : Rs. 3,047.99()] 3,047.99 5,768.42
Raw Material[stock in transit: Rs. 24,705.19()] 24,705.19 22,184.55
Total 1,53,835.73 1,00,797.46

Note No. 12 Trade receivables

< in thousand

Particulars As at 31st March 2023 As at 31st March 2022
Secured, Considered good 48,673.25 18,200.87
Unsecured, Considered Good

Doubtful

Allowance for doubtful receivables

Total 48,673.25 18,200.87

(Current Year)

< in thousand

Particulars

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Less than 6 | 6 months -1 More than 3
1-2 years 2-3 years Total
months year years
i) Undisputed Trade receivables 48,673.25 48,673.25

considered good)

considered doubtful)

(
(
(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables
(
(

iii) Disputed Trade Receivables
considered good

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables
considered doubtful

(v) Provision for doubtful
receivables
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(Previous Year)

(2022-2023)

< in thousand

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Less than 6 | 6 months -1 More than 3
1-2 years 2-3 years Total
months years
i) Undisputed Trade receivables 18,200.87 18,200.87

considered good)

considered doubtful)

(
(
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables
(
(

i) Disputed Trade Receivables
considered good

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables
considered doubtful

(v) Provision for doubtful
receivables

Note No. 13 Cash and cash equivalents

< in thousand

Particulars

Balance with banks
Bank of Baroda
Total

Cash in hand

Cash in hand

Total

Total

As at 31st March 2023 As at 31st March 2022
141.51
141.51
121.59 76.84
121.59 76.84
263.10 76.84

Note No. 14 Other current assets

< in thousand

Particulars As at 31st March 2023 As at 31st March 2022
Other Assets

GST Credit 15,820.25 17,122.93
TCS 135.21 45.84
TDS 94.57 12.72
Sundry Creditors having Debit Balance 856.68 3,081.84
Income Tax 217.23

Total 17,123.93 20,263.33

Note No. 15 Revenue from operations

< in thousand

Particulars

31st March 2023

31st March 2022

Sale of products

Sale gst
Sales 5,58,555.11
Sales Export 33,040.85
5,91,595.96 3,47,916.95
Net revenue from operations 5,91,595.96 3,47,916.95

Note No. 16 Other income

< in thousand

Particulars

31st March 2023

31st March 2022

Other non-operating income
Discount Received

Cartage

Insurance Outward

Round Off

Packing Charges
Commission

2,341.44
942.58
135.50

1.51
19.68
7717

563.03
690.07
47.92
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(2022-2023)

Duty Draw Back Received 344.62
Insurance Claim Received 1,100.02
USD Gains 266.19
5,228.71 1,301.02
Total 5,228.71 1,301.02

Note No. 17 Cost of material Consumed

< in thousand

Particulars

31st March 2023

31st March 2022

Inventory at the beginning

Raw Material 22,184.55 19,005.79
Consumables 5,768.42 1,732.18
27,952.97 20,737.97
Add:Purchase
Raw Material 5,18,819.20 3,28,888.86
Consumables 24,006.24 25,249.34
5,42,825.44 3,54,138.20
Less:-Inventory at the end
Raw Material 24,705.19 22,184.55
Consumables 3,047.99 5,768.42
27,753.18 27,952.97
Total 5,43,025.23 3,46,923.20

Details of material consumed

< in thousand

Particulars 31st March 2023 31st March 2022

Raw Material

Consumption raw material 4,84,919.12 78,530.91

Consumption raw material 31,379.44 2,47,179.19
5,16,298.56 3,25,710.10

Consumables

Consumables 26,726.67 21,213.10

26,726.67 21,213.10
Total 5,43,025.23 3,46,923.20

Details of inventory

< in thousand

Particulars 31st March 2023 31st March 2022

Raw Material

Consumption raw material 24,705.19

Consumption raw material 22,184.55
24,705.19 22,184.55

Consumables

Consumables 3,047.99 5,768.42

3,047.99 5,768.42
Total 27,753.18 27,952.97

Details of purchase

< in thousand

Particulars

31st March 2023

31st March 2022

Raw Material

Consumption raw material 5,09,624.31 59,525.12
Consumption raw material 9,194.89 2,69,363.74
5,18,819.20 3,28,888.86

Consumables
Consumables 24,006.24 25,249.34
24,006.24 25,249.34
Total 5,42,825.44 3,54,138.20
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Note No. 19 Changes in inventories

(2022-2023)

< in thousand

Particulars

31st March 2023

31st March 2022

Inventory at the end of the year
Finished Goods

Inventory at the beginning of the year
Finished Goods

(Increase)/decrease in inventories
Finished Goods

1,26,082.54 72,844.49
1,26,082.54 72,844.49
72,844.49 12,582.09
72,844.49 12,582.09
(53,238.05) (60,262.40)
(53,238.05) (60,262.40)

Note No. 20 Employee benefit expenses

< in thousand

Particulars

31st March 2023

31st March 2022

Salaries and Wages

Wages and labour 10,926.62 8,704.78
10,926.62 8,704.78
Staff welfare Expenses
Labour Welfare Charges 24515
ESIC and EPFO 390.51 898.21
635.66 898.21
Total 11,562.28 9,602.99

Note No. 21 Finance costs

< in thousand

Particulars 31st March 2023 31st March 2022
Interest
Interest on Bank Loan 17,081.10 13,480.00
Interest to Others 1,069.57
Interest on Tds 0.02

17,081.12 14,549.57
Other Borrowing costs
Bank Charges 619.65 158.80
Processing Fees 26.73 961.33
Currency Conversion Charges 1.34 0.06
Interest to others 4.57

652.29 1,120.19

Total 17,733.41 15,669.76

Note No. 22 Depreciation and amortization expenses

< in thousand

Particulars

31st March 2023

31st March 2022

Depreciation on tangible assets

4,966.26

4,229.52

Total

4,966.26

4,229.52

Note No. 23 Other expenses

< in thousand

Particulars

31st March 2023

31st March 2022

Direct Expenses

Freight Expenses

Tour and Travelling Expenses
Discount Allowed

General Expenses

Insurance expenses

Printing and stationery
Telephone expenses

Audit fees

Preliminary expenses written off

39,717.64
7,628.57
149.46

752.13
613.15
453.25
83.05
75.00
183.85

21,628.18
1,727.95
336.66
667.11
237.88
251.64
84.45
14.74
50.00
186.85
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(2022-2023)

Legal expenses 159.05 177.24
Consultancy Fees 200.00
Conveyance expenses 1,128.09
Donations 2.10
Manpower Recruitment 3.30
Water Expenses 450.00
Consumable (Indirect) Expneses 1,431.60 1,284.07
Miscellenous Expenses 10.57
Postage & Courier 1.80
Advertising expenses 302.89
AMC Charges 63.50
Export Charges 300.20
Container Repairing Exp 38.50
Domain Registration Fees 31.78
Gas Connection Expenses 14.90
Grocery Expenses 1.81
Legal Consultancy 274.50
MCA fees 22.93
Petrol and Diesel Expenses 1,331.22
Stuffing Charges 19.75
Software Expenses 21.65
Registration Fees 472
Bad debts (Amount is less than 1 lakh) 9.82
Total 53,890.29 28,237.22

Note No. 24 Current tax

< in thousand

Particulars 31st March 2023 31st March 2022
Current tax pertaining to current year 400.00
Total 400.00

Note No. 6(a) Other current liabilities:TDS and TCS Payable

< in thousand

Particulars 31st March 2023 As at 31st March 2022

Tds on Consultancy 16.96
Tds on Contractor 1.59
Tds on Employee 40.00 160.00
Tds on Interest 106.96
Tds on Rent 180.00 180.00
TDS on Commission 4.36
TCS Payable 9.31
TDS on Purchase 37.05 49.02
Total 257.05 528.20

Note No. 6(b) Other current liabilities:Debtors Having Credit Balance

< in thousand

Particulars 31st March 2023 As at 31st March 2022

Lantech Technologies 805.14
BRD Automation 40.00
Configured Platforms 3,791.00 33.53
Durga Aluminium house 341.37 341.37
Hem Aluminium 115.13
Kosol Energie P Ltd 157.81
M S Metals 1.98
Shivam Proteco P Ltd 4.34
Shree Ram Hardware House 128.71
Shree Balaji Smart Partitions 180.00
Shri Ram vajra house 58.92
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Yash Aluminium Ladder

Patel Tubes 16.92
Supermarket Parts Warehouse Inc 49.59
Aumni Transmission Industries Pvt Ltd 1.93
Varsha Alluminium 40.14

Total 4,240.95 1,866.94




KANISHK ALUMINIUM INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED (2022-2023)
(Formerly known as Kanishk Aluminium Extrusions Private Limited)

Registered Office: Plot No. E-849 A, Fourth Phase, RICCO Boranada, Jodhpur-342001, Rajasthan

CIN: U27109RJ2018PTC063198

Email id: permanand1963@gmail.com, Telephone No.: 0291-2980703



KANISHK ALUMINIUM INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

(Formerly known as Kanishk Aluminium Extrusions Private Limited)
Registered Office: Plot No. E-849 A, Fourth Phase, RICCO Boranada, Jodhpur-342001, Rajasthan

CIN: U27109RJ2018PTC063198

Email id: permanand1963@gmail.com, Telephone No.: 0291-2980703

Note No. 9(a) Loans and advances : Security Deposit: Secured,

considered good

(2022-2023)

< in thousand

Particulars As at 31st March 2023 As at 31st March 2022
Long-term Short-term Long-term Short-term

Security of Containers 30.00 67.34
Security for Electricity 409.00 409.00
Security Deposit for Gas connection 306.05 127.71
Deposit at Pollution Control Board 50.00

Security for Gas Line 777.83

Total 1,572.88 604.05

Note No. 14(a) Other current assets:Other Assets: Sundry Creditors

having Debit Balance

< in thousand

Particulars 31st March 2023 As at 31st March 2022
Bhati Engineering Corporation 205.26
Buildcraft Constructions 570.60
The National Small Industries Corp Ltd 127.95 6.90
Bhanwar Singh and Co 150.00
PN Agarwal and Co Rent 135.00 135.00
Bhati Steels 83.19 80.99
Funding Chip Private Limited 0.94
Kaliash Industries 0.76
Koge Importers and Processors 9.82
Laxmi Industries 16.61
Mohit Agarwal 1.52
Mohit j And Associates 4.82
Narbada Goods Transport 40.00
OFB Tech P Ltd (Odissa) 53.98 214.02
Schindler India P Ltd 102.00
Shri Ram Aluminium Company 1,495.44
Stylex Gadgets India 47.16
Agarwal Hardware 39.95

Laxmi Engineering Works 250.00

M Tech Furnaces India Pvt Itd 148.68

Rajasthan Export Promotion Councils 14.16

Kuldeep Singh 3.77

Total 856.68 3,081.84

Note No. 23(a) Other expenses: Direct Expenses

< in thousand

Particulars

31st March 2023

31st March 2022

Import Charges on Raw Material 138.02 4,263.46
Electricity Expenses 14,258.31 9,100.17
Factory Rent 1,800.00 1,800.00
Freight Inward 590.23 2,462.13
Commission on Sale 1,956.99 1,991.98
Repairs and Maintenance Expenses 6,380.78 1,555.42
Die Hardening 638.08 455.02
Job Work Charges 12,152.07
Packing Material Expenses 1,732.57
Commission on Purchase 70.58
Total 39,717.64 21,628.18
Note No. 17 Value of import and indigenous material consumed < in thousand
Unit of 31st March 2023 31st March 2022
Particulars Measurement Value Quantity Value Quantity
Raw Material
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Consumption raw material
Consumption raw material

Consumables
Consumables

31,379.44
4,84,919.12

5,16,298.56

26,726.67

26,726.67

2,47,179.19
78,530.91

3,25,710.10

21,213.10

21,213.10

(2022-2023)

< in thousand

31st March 2023

31st March 2022

Parti %to total %to total
articulars Value . value .
Consumption Consumption
Raw Material
Imported 31,379.44 6.08 2,47,179.19 75.89
Indigenous 4,84,919.12 93.92 78,530.91 24.11
5,16,298.56 100.00 3,25,710.10 100.00
Consumables
Imported
Indigenous 26,726.67 100.00 21,213.10 100.00
26,726.67 100.00 21,213.10 100.00

Note No. 25 Earning Per Share

< in thousand

Particulars Before Extraordinary items After Extraordinary items
31st March 31st March 31st March 31st March
2023 2022 2023 2022

Basic

Profit after tax (A) 16,788.01 2,503.93 16,788.01 2,503.93
\(/gc)aighted average number of shares outstanding 49,00,000 49,00,000 49,00,000 49,00,000
Basic EPS (A/B) 3.43 0.51 3.43 0.51
Diluted

Profit after tax (A) 16,788.01 2,503.93 16,788.01 2,503.93
\(/é/;)eighted average number of shares outstanding 49,00,000 49,00,000 49,00,000 49,00,000
Diluted EPS (A / B) 3.43 0.51 3.43 0.51
Face value per share 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00
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Note number:

Additional Regulatory Information

(1) Ratios:
0,
Ratio Numerator Denominator CY PY /o Reason for variance

Ratio Ratio | Change
(a) Current Ratio Current Assets Current Liabilities 1.18 6.99 -83.12
(b) Debt-Equity Ratio E%Z%TTZT” %‘Z%tt" Shareholder equity 439 471 679

. Earning Before Interest, I
g:) I_Jebt Service Coverage tax, Depreciation & Total principal + ' 0.00 0.00
atio Amortisation Interest on Borrowings
Earning After Interest, Average Shareholder's
(d) Return on Equity Ratio | tax, Depreciation & Equit 9 0.33 0.06 450.00
Amortisation quity

£:1ig\ventow turnover Turnover Average Inventory 4.65 5.19 -10.40
{Trade Racaivables Net Credit Sales Average Trade 17.69 8.73| 10263
urnover ratio Receivable
ggl:;:gfr':?x) ables Net Credit Purchase | Average Trade Payable |  20.17|  34.74| -41.94
(h)-Net capital turnover Total Sales Avet_’age Working 17.69 290 510.00
ratio Capital
(i) Net profit ratio Net Profit Net Sales 0.03 0.01 200.00
gzn';‘l’;‘;;'r" Capital Eig}‘(‘”g Before Interest | . ital employed 0.11 0.08| 37.50
(k) Return on investment 0.00 0.00
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KANISHK ALUMINIUM EXTRUSIONS PRIVATE LIMITED

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES & NOTES ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note No. : 25

A. Significant Accounting Policies

1. Basis of accounting:-

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles in India (Indian GAAP) including the Accounting
Standards notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act,
2013.

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention on
accrual basis.

2. Revenue Recognition: -

Expenses and Income considered payable and receivable respectively are accounted for
on accrual basis.

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow
to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured.

3. Principles of consolidation :-

Company does not have any holding, subsidiary or associate company.

4. Property, Plant & Equipment :-

Property, Plant & Equipment including intangible assets are stated at their original cost of
acquisition including taxes, freight and other incidental expenses related to acquisition
and installation of the concerned assets less depreciation till date.

Company has adopted cost model for all class of items of Property Plant and Equipment.
5. Depreciation :-

Depreciation on Fixed Assets is provided to the extent of depreciable amount on SLM
method. Depreciation is provided based on useful life of the assets as prescribed in
Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013.

6. Foreign currency Transactions: -

Transactions arising in foreign currencies during the year are converted at the rates
closely approximating the rates ruling on the transaction dates. Liabilities and receivables
in foreign currency are restated at the year-end exchange rates.

7. Investments :-

Investments are stated at their cost.

8. Inventories :-

Inventories are valued as under:-
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1. Inventories : Lower of cost or net realizable value, valued at FIFO Method
2. Scrap : At net realizable value.
9. Retirement Benefits:-

The company has taken a policy from Employee State Insurance Corporation (ESIC) and
Employee Provident Fund (EPF) for the payment of gratuity. The gratuity has been
provided in books on accrual basis.

10.Taxes on Income:-

The deferred tax for timing differences between the book and tax profits for the year is
accounted for, using the tax rates and laws that have been substantively enacted by the
balance sheet date.

(B) Notes on Financial Statements

1. The SSI status of the creditors is not known to the Company; hence the information is not
given.

2. Salaries does not includes directors remuneration on account of salary. (Previous Year
Rs.0 /-)

3. Trade receivables, Trade payables, Loans & Advances and Unsecured Loans have been
taken at their book value subject to confirmation and reconciliation.

4. Payments to Auditors:

Auditors Remuneration FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22
Audit Fees 75,000 50,000
Tax Audit Fees - -
Company Law Matters - -

GST - -
Total 75,000 50000

5. Loans and Advances are considered good in respect of which company does not hold
any security other than the personal guarantee of persons.

6. Advance to others includes advances to concerns in which directors are interested:

Name of Concern Current Year Previous Year
Closing Balance Closing
Balance
NIL NIL

7. Related Party disclosure as identified by the company and relied upon by the auditors:

(A) Related Parties and their Relationship




KANISHK ALUMINIUM INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
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(1) Key Management Personnel

1. PARMANAND AGARWAL
2. KHUSHBOO AGARWAL

(1) Relative of Key Management Personnel

N

OM PRAKASH AGARWAL
INDRA MANI AGARWAL
MADHU AGARWAL
ASHISH AGARWAL

(2022-2023)

(IIl) Enterprises owned or significantly influenced by Key Management personnel or their

relatives
1.

KANISHK METALS

2. PNAGARWAL AND CO

Transactions with Related parties

(Figure in INR)

Transactions during the year

Current Year

Previous year

Key Relative of Key Key Relative of
Particulars Management Management Managemen Key
Personnel Personnel t Personnel | Managemen
t Personnel
Advance Paid NIL NIL NIL NIL
Received Back NIL NIL NIL NIL
Deposit Received 1,97,73,000/ | 3,16,63,000.00 NIL NIL
Deposit Repaid 19,60,000.00 10,03,191.00 NIL NIL
Interest Received NIL NIL NIL NIL
Interest Paid NIL NIL NIL- 1 9,62,613.00
Remuneration Paid NIL NIL NIL NIL
Purchase 31075190 11167755 31 ’99’5:7'0 3’14’052’11 49
17,40,75,737. 40,77,419.
Sales A0,75,73 5,69,02,020.48 0,77,419.0 NIL
27 0
Other Payment NIL NIL 63’69’5071 0
Job Charges 81,70,165.84 37,58,878.27 NIL NIL




KANISHK ALUMINIUM INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED (2022-2023)
(Formerly known as Kanishk Aluminium Extrusions Private Limited)

Registered Office: Plot No. E-849 A, Fourth Phase, RICCO Boranada, Jodhpur-342001, Rajasthan
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Rent Paid 18,00,000.00 NIL 18,00,000.0 NIL
0
Outstanding Balances
Current Year Previous year
Key Relative of Key Relative of
Particulars Management Key Management Key
Personnel Management Personnel Management
Personnel Personnel
Loans Taken 19773000 31663000 NIL NIL
Loans Repaid 1960000 1003191 NIL NIL

8. % of imported & indigenous raw material & consumables

Particulars FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22
% Amount % Amount
Imported 1.67% 91,94,889.46 | 16.81% 5,95,25,118.19
Indigenous 98.33% 54,28,25,443.15 | 83.19% 29,46,13,084.50

9. Value of Imports

Raw Material 91,94,889.46 5,95,25,118.19
Finished Goods Nil Nil
10.Expenditure in Foreign Currency Nil Nil
11.Earning in Foreign Exchange Nil Nil

12.Previous year figures have been regrouped/rearranged wherever necessary.

Signature to notes 1

As per our report of even date
For MAHAVEER GANDHI AND ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
(FRN: 010756C) . -

MAHAVEE Digitallysigned PARMANAN Y ANAND

R GANDHI Z);\m:f VEER D AGARWAL aGarRwAL
MAHAVEER GANDHI PERMANAND AGARWAL

Chairman and Director

PARTNER DIN: 08295200
Membership No.: 074020 :

Place: Jodhpur Behind Dhanwantri Hospital, 21 Kanti
Date: 01/09/2023 Nagar, Pal Road, Jodhpur-342008, Rajasthan



